
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 

 

THURSDAY 14TH MARCH 2013 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), J. S. Brogan (Vice-
Chairman), Ms. M. T. Buxton, Dr. B. T. Cooper, S. J. Dudley, 
Miss P. A. Harrison and Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held 
on 13th December 2012 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Grant Thornton - Certification Report 2011/ 2012 (Pages 7 - 20) 
 

5. Grant Thornton - Auditing Standards (Pages 21 - 42) 
 

6. Grant Thornton - Audit Plan March 2013 (Pages 43 - 64) 
 

7. Grant Thornton - Progress Report (Pages 65 - 78) 
 

8. Presentation from Head of Service, Leisure and Cultural Services  
 

9. Statement of Accounting Policies (Pages 79 - 102) 
 

10. Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 2011 - 2012 - Verbal update in 
respect of progress made on the actions  
 

11. Corporate Fraud (how the Authority pro-actively responds) - Verbal update  
 



- 2 - 

12. Benefits Investigations - Demographic Profile (Pages 103 - 104) 
 

13. Corporate Risk Register / Risk Management Update - Presentation from the 
Head of Finance & Resources  
 

14. Audit Board End of Year Report - For Member discussion  
 
To discuss the Board’s End of Year report and timescales. 
  

15. Audit Board Work Programme (Pages 105 - 106) 
 

16. DRAFT Internal Audit Plan 2013 / 2014 (Pages 107 - 114) 
 

17. Internal Audit Monitoring Report (Pages 115 - 124) 
 

18. To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following resolution to 
exclude the public from the meeting during the consideration of items of 
business containing exempt information:-  
 
"RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part being as set out below, 
and that it is in the public interest to do so:- 
 

Item No. Paragraphs  
19            7           “  

   
19. Appendices 3 and 4 for Agenda Item 17  - Internal Audit Monitoring Report 

(Pages 125 - 158) 
 

20. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
6th March 2013 



- 3 - 

 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

Ø  You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

Ø  You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

Ø  You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

Ø  You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

Ø  An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

Ø  A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

Ø  You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

Ø  Meeting Agendas 
Ø  Meeting Minutes 
Ø  The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 

 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 

 

THURSDAY, 13TH DECEMBER 2012 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), J. S. Brogan (Vice-Chairman), 
Ms. M. T. Buxton, Dr. B. T. Cooper, Miss P. A. Harrison and 
Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

 Also in attendance:  Mr. P. Jones (Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton) 
and Ms. Z. Thomas (Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton)  

  

 Officers:  Ms. J. Pickering, Mrs. T. Kristunas, Mr. A. Bromage and Ms. R. 
Cole. 

 
 

26/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor S. J. Dudley. 
 

27/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

28/12 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 20th September 2012 
were approved as a correct record. 
 

29/12 AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2011 - 2012  

 
The Chairman welcomed Mr. P. Jones (Engagement Lead) and Ms. Z. 
Thomas (Engagement Manager) from Grant Thornton to the meeting. 
 
The Board considered a report on the responses of the Section 151 Officer to 
the Annual Governance Report from the Audit Commission for 2011/2012. 
This report had been considered by Cabinet and Council in September.  
 
Ms. Z. Thomas briefly explained the background to the Annual Governance 
Report which was part of the process for auditing the final accounts for 
2011/2012 and reported that the Section 151 Officer had considered and 
agreed the five recommendations proposed by the Audit Commission. These 
were: 
 

• Review the shared service plans accounting arrangements in order to 
simplify the process; 

• Improve risk management arrangements and reporting; 

• Continue to monitor the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan; 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Audit Board 
13th December 2012 

 

• Review the format of the monitoring of savings as presented to officers 
and Members; and 

• Review the benefits transformation with the aim to bring to a close.   
 
It was reported that responses to the recommendations had been 
incorporated into an Action Plan which was attached as Appendix 1 to this 
report.  
 
The Board discussed in particular the issue of monitoring savings arising from 
the shared service and transformation process. It was appreciated that it was 
important for the Authority to be able to demonstrate and monitor the savings 
achieved. The Head of Finance and Resources explained that through 
transformation work in a particular area, savings were sometimes achieved in 
other areas which may not have been envisaged at the start of the process.  
 
The Executive Director (Finance and Resources) agreed this could make it 
more challenging to identify savings but explained officers were aware of this 
and were working towards improving the processes. It was intended that the 
information would be presented to Members as part of the quarterly financial 
monitoring reports.  
 
Following discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED:  

(a)  that the responses to the Annual Governance Report 2011/2012 be 
noted; and 

(b)  that officers be requested to report to the Board on a quarterly basis in 
respect of progress made on the actions to enable them to be 
monitored effectively. 

 
RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet be requested to ensure that processes are 
put into place to enable savings achieved through the transformation process 
to be effectively monitored.  
 

30/12 PLANNED AUDIT FEE FOR 2012/2013  

 
(The Chairman agreed to the consideration of this item as an urgent matter as 
consideration was required before the next meeting of the Board).  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. P. Jones, the Council’s Engagement 
Lead from Grant Thornton gave a brief introduction to the Company and 
explained how they would hope to work with the Council over the forthcoming 
year.  
 
Mr. Jones then reported on the Council scale fee for 2012/2013. It was noted 
that this had reduced from an Audit Fee of £106,676 for 2011/2012 to £64,006 
for 2012/2013 a reduction of £40%. 
 
In response to questions from Members it was explained that this was largely 
due to a streamlining of processes and was not as a result of a decrease in 
input. In addition there would be a focus on agreed areas of high risk within 

Page 2



Audit Board 
13th December 2012 

 

systems. The Audit Commission would maintain a supervisory role and there 
would be formal Client surveys undertaken to obtain feedback.   
 
RESOLVED that the planned audit fee for 2012/2013 of £64,006 be approved.    
 

31/12 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER / RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
The Head of Finance and Resources gave the Board an update on the 
changes to the Risk management arrangements following the changes in 
processes arising from shared services and the transformation of services. A 
joint shared approach had been taken with regard to risk identification, 
recording and monitoring.   
 
It was reported that a new risk management framework document had been 
produced in draft and was currently in the process of being reviewed by the 
Corporate Management Team. Key risks had been identified across each 
service and these would be managed on an on going basis using a web based 
system. It was reported that an officer Risk Management Group would monitor 
the operational risks and where appropriate escalate these for discussion and 
inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register.  
 
The Head of Finance and Resources referred to some of the key risks 
identified so far such as: 
 

• The need to deliver “business as usual” whilst transformation was on 
going; 

• Failure to deliver a Local Plan could result in increased challenge over 
planning decisions or unwanted developments; 

• Failing to work closely with the new Police and Crime Commissioner 
with respect of community safety; 

• Failure to secure County Council funding for Lifeline services from April 
2013. 

   
Clearly actions would be put in place to mitigate the risks identified. The Head 
of Finance and Resources felt that use of the new risk management tool 
would enable risks to be monitored and addressed on a more effective and 
timely basis.  
 
The Board discussed the importance of an effective risk management system 
and it was  
 
RESOLVED that officers be requested to report further to the Board on the 
development of the new risk management system, including corporate and 
operational risks.  
 

32/12 BENEFITS INVESTIGATIONS APRIL - SEPTEMBER 2012  

 
The Board considered a report on Benefits Service Fraud Investigations 
service for April to September 2012. The Head of Finance and Resources 
reported on some of the background to the figures. It was reported that 

Page 3



Audit Board 
13th December 2012 

 

referrals arose from a number of sources and that it was essential to have a 
joint approach to working with the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP).  
 
It was also noted that the changes to the Benefits systems arising from the 
Welfare Reform Act would have significant consequences. The DWP had 
proposed combining the various fraud services into a Single Fraud 
Investigation Service (SFIS).  
 
Members of the Board raised queries on the tables of investigations and 
sanctions which gave comparisons across the County. It was noted that a 
significant proportion of cases within the District resulted in the acceptance of 
a caution. In addition it was noted that in the previous financial year the 
number of investigations closed had peaked in quarter 2 and decreased quite 
significantly in quarters 3 and 4.  
 
Members felt it would be helpful to understand the nature of the cases more 
fully before considering any further action which may be required. 
 
Following discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED: 

(a)   that the report be noted; and  
(b)  that the Head of Finance and Resources be requested to provide the 

Board with additional information on the nature and demographic profile 
of the cases of fraud within the District and that this be circulated prior 
to the next meeting of the Board in March 2013.      

 
33/12 INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER'S - DRAFT AUDIT PLAN 2013 / 2014  

 
The Board considered a report from Mr. A. Bromage, Internal Audit Manager, 
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service, on the draft internal Audit 
Operational Plan together with the key performance indicators for the Internal 
Audit Shared Service. 
 
Mr. Bromage explained that the Annual Plan had been drawn up following 
discussions with the Section 151 Officer and Heads of Service and was a risk 
based plan. Mr. Bromage and the Executive Director (Finance and Resources) 
responded to Members’ questions in relation to: 
 

• the purpose of days allocated to Shared Service Delivery (Client)  

• Section 106 Agreements 

• Bromsgrove Urban and Rural Transport service 

• the days allocated to catch up work from the previous year  
 
In addition Members queried the days allocated to Transitional (Critical Friend) 
and the Risk Management days and whether this was the best use of the 
Audit days available. The Executive Director (Finance and Resources) 
undertook to discuss this further with the Internal Audit Manager to ensure 
best value was obtained from the days available.  
 
Following discussion it was  

Page 4



Audit Board 
13th December 2012 

 

 
RESOLVED: 

(a) that the report be noted subject to the discussion referred to in the 
preamble; and 

(b) that the key performance indicators for the Worcestershire Internal 
Audit Shared Service for 2013/2014 be approved.    

 
34/12 AUDIT BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012 / 2013  

 
The Board considered the Work Programme 2012/2013.  
 
It was noted that the Audit Commission Annual Letter had been considered 
previously and could be removed from the list for the March meeting. 
 
In addition further to the discussion on risk management earlier in the meeting, 
it was agreed that at the March meeting, high level risks be considered 
together with operational risks from the Leisure and Culture Department and 
that the Head of Service be invited to attend the meeting.  
 
It was also requested that an item on Corporate Fraud and how the Authority 
pro-actively responds to this be added to the Work Programme  
 
RESOLVED that subject to the amendments set out in the preamble the Work 
Programme be noted. 
 

35/12 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT  

 
The Board considered a report which detailed the monitoring of internal audit 
work as at 30th November 2012. It was reported that the full Audit Plan would 
be delivered by the end of the year.  
 
In relation to the Key Performance Indicators, Members requested that this be 
broken down into quarterly targets where possible.   
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 

36/12 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

 
RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following item of business of the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraph of that part being as set out below, 
and that it is in the public interest to do so:- 
 
 Minute No.  Paragraph  
  37/12        7 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Audit Board 
13th December 2012 

 

37/12 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT  

 
The Board considered the Appendices to the Internal Audit Monitoring Report. 
 
RESOLVED that the current position be noted.  
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

AUDIT BOARD      14TH MARCH 2013 

 
GRANT THORNTON – CERTIFICATION WORK REPORT 2011/12 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service 
Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance 
and Resources 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To present Members with the Grant Certification report for 2011/12 from the Councils 

External Auditors Grant Thornton. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and action plan. 
 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 There is a 50% saving on the prior year fee for grant claim work as levied by the Audit 

Commission. The budget 2013/14 includes the assumption of this reduced fee being 
charged. 

 
  

Legal Implications 
 
3.2 Grant Thornton have a statutory responsibility to certify the claims submitted by the Council. 

The Council has a legally binding contract with Grant Thornton to provide the External Audit 
service for at least the next 5 years. 

 
  

Service / Operational Implications 
 
3.3 External Auditors have a duty to carry out all work necessary to meet their statutory 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. This includes certification of 
grant claims. 

 
3.4 The auditors have certified 4 claims for 2011/12 relating to over £71m of expenditure. 

These are: 
 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefit Scheme 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT BOARD      14TH MARCH 2013 

 

• National Non Domestic Rates 
 
3.5 The key messages from the Audits are; 

• Claims were all submitted and certified on time  

• Overall the Council is performing well and there are no significant matters arising 

• There was excellent support from officers for the Housing Benefit Claim  

• Supporting working papers were generally good 
 

3.6 There is one action area to include a number of points that officers will address for the 
certification of 2012/13 grants. This relates to the Housing Benefit grant review work that 
has to be undertaken. There were a number of issues relating to the resourcing of this 
process and officers have agreed to work with the External Auditors to ensure an 
improvement in 2012/13 certification.  
 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
3.7 There are no implications arising out of this report. 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
      
4.1 As part of all audit work the auditors undertake a risk assessment to ensure that adequate 

controls are in place within the Council so reliance can be placed on internal systems. 
 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

   Appendix A – Grant Thornton Certification Report 2011/12 
    
    
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
  Individual internal audit reports. 
 
 
7. KEY 

 
N/a 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Jayne Pickering 
E Mail:  j.pickering@bromsgrove&redditch.gov.uk 
 
Tel:       01527-881207 

Page 8



Bromsgrove District  Council 

Certification work report 2011/12 

February  2012 

 

 

 
 

Page 9



1� Executive Summary 1�

2� Results of our certification work 3�
 

 

Appendices 

A� Approach and context to certification 5�

B� Details of claims and returns certified for 2010/11 7�

C� Action plan 8�
 

Contents 

Page 10



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

1

Introduction 

1.1 Grant Thornton, as the Council’s auditors and acting as agents of the Audit Commission, is 
required to certify the claims submitted by the Council.  This certification typically takes 
place some 6-12 months after the claim period and represents a final but important part of 
the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 

1.2 Grant Thornton have not certified any claims during 2011/12 as the work was completed 
by the Audit Commission. The Audit  Commission certified two claims and returns for the 
financial year 2011/12 relating to expenditure of £45 million.  All claims in 2012/13 will be 
certified by Grant Thornton. 

1.3 This report summarises our overall assessment of the Council’s management arrangements 
in respect of the certification process and draws attention to significant matters in relation to 
individual claims.  

Approach and context to certification 

1.4 We provide a certificate on the accuracy of grant claims and returns to various government 
departments and other agencies.  Arrangements for certification are prescribed by the Audit 
Commission, which agrees the scope of the work with each relevant government 
department or agency, and issues auditors with a Certification Instruction (CI) for each 
specific claim or return. 

1.5 Appendix A sets out an overview of the approach to certification work, the roles and 
responsibilities of the various parties involved and the scope of the work we perform. 

Key messages 

1.6 It should be noted that all work reported in this certification report was completed by the 
Audit Commission prior to our appointment as the Council's auditors. The findings set out 
in this report therefore represent the results of your previous auditors work.  

1.7 A summary of all claims and returns subject to certification and details of our certification 
fee is provided at Appendix B. The key messages from our review are summarised in 
Exhibit One, and set out in detail in the next section of the report. 

1 Executive Summary 

Arrangements for 

certification for claims 

and returns: 

• below £125,000 - 
no certification 

• above £125,000 
and below 
£500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 

• over £500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 
and assessment of 
control 
environment.  
Where full reliance 
cannot be placed, 
detailed testing.

Page 11



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

2

Exhibit One:  Summary of Council performance 

Aspect of 
certification 
arrangements 

Key Message 

Submission and 
certification 

All claims were submitted on time to audit and all claims were 
certified within the required deadline.

Accuracy of claim 
forms submitted to 
the auditor 

Amendments and 
qualifications 

Overall the Council is performing well and there are no 
significant matters arising from our certification of claims and 
returns.  There was excellent cooperation over the housing 
benefits audit and savings on the audit fee accrued as a result.   

 

Supporting working 
papers 

Supporting working papers were generally  of a good standard, 
which enabled certification within the deadlines. 

 

The way forward 

 

1.8 We have made   recommendations for improvement for the housing benefits claim in 
Appendix C. 

1.9 Implementation of the agreed recommendations will assist the council in compiling accurate 
and timely claims for certification.  This will reduce the risk of penalties for late submission, 
potential repayment of grant and additional fees.  

Acknowledgements 

1.10 We would like to take this opportunity to thank the grant claim co-ordinator and Council 
officers for their assistance and co-operation during the course of the certification process. 

Grant Thornton UK  LLP 

February  2013 

Page 12



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

3

Key messages 

2.1 Two claims We have certified two claims and returns for the financial year 2010/11 relating 
to expenditure of £45 million. 

2.2 The Council's performance in preparing claims and returns is summarised in Exhibit Two. 

Exhibit Two:  Performance against key certification targets 
 

Performance measure Target Achievement in 
2011-12 

Achievement 
in 2010-11 

Direction 
of travel 

  No. % No. %  

Total claims/returns  2  3   

Number of claims 
submitted on time 

100% 2 100 3 100 � 

Number of claims 
certified on time 

100% 2 100 3 100 � 

Number of claims 
certified with 
amendment 

0% 0 100 1 33 � 

Number of claims 
certified with 
qualification 

0% 1 50 1 33 � 

 

2.3 The above table shows that Council now has very few claims that require audit. The 
disabled facilities grant was audited in 2010/11 but fell  below the level that required an 
audit in 2011/12.    

2.4  The housing benefits claim was subject to qualification this year and in previous years.  The 
financial implications to the Council of this qualification will vary each year, depending on 
the cases audited, the types of errors identified and the view taken by the DWP on the 
errors reported.  We will continue to work with officers to reduce the number of 
qualifications on this claim and to complete this audit as efficiently as possible. 

2.5 Details on the certification of all claims and returns are included at Appendix B.    

2.6 We charged a total fee of £685 for the certification of claims and returns in 2011-12. In 
addition, your previous auditors the Audit Commission, charged a total fee of £8164 against 
an indicative budget of £13,300. Details of fees charged for specific claims and returns are 
included at Appendix B.   

2 Results of our certification work 

Page 13



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

4

Significant findings 

2.7 There are no significant findings arising from the audits.  Recommendations for 
improvement are contained in appendix C 

2.8 A qualification letter was issued on the housing benefits claim.   These errors did not 
indicate any underlying weakness in the Council arrangements for processing claims and are 
of the type that are commonly identified in these audits.  Nevertheless the Council should 
continue to drive up the quality of its housing benefits processing to keep these errors to a 
minimum.  This will ensure that the claimants receive the benefit that they are entitled to, in 
a timely manner and reduce the risk of financial penalties imposed by the DWP when a 
qualification letter is issued. 

Page 14



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

5

Appendix A 

A Approach and context to certification 

Introduction 

 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as agents 
for the Audit Commission in reviewing and providing a certificate on the accuracy of grant 
claims and returns to various government departments and other agencies. 

The Audit Commission agrees with the relevant grant paying body the work and level of 
testing which should be completed for each grant claim and return, and set this out in a 
grant Certification Instruction (CI).  Each programme of work is split into two parts, firstly 
an assessment of the control environment relating to the claim or return and secondly, a 
series of detailed tests. 

In summary the arrangements are: 

• for amounts claimed below £125,000 - no certification required 

• for amounts claimed above £125,000 but below £500,000 - work is limited to 
certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council 

• for amounts claimed over £500,000 - an assessment of the control environment 
and certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council.  Where 
reliance is not placed on the control environment, detailed testing is performed. 
 

Our certificate 

Following our work on each claim or return, we issue our certificate.  The wording of this 
depends on the level of work performed as set out above, stating either the claim or return 
is in accordance with the underlying records, or the claim or return is fairly stated and in 
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.  Our certificate also states that the claim 
has been certified: 

• without qualification; 

• without qualification but with agreed amendments incorporated by the authority; or 

• with a qualification letter (with or without agreed amendments incorporated by the 
authority). 
 

Where a claim is qualified because the authority has not complied with the strict 
requirements set out in the certification instruction, there is a risk that grant-paying bodies 
will retain funding claimed by the authority or, claw back funding which has already been 
provided or has not been returned.  In addition, where claims or returns require amendment 
or are qualified, this increases the time taken to undertake this work, which impacts on the 
certification fee. 

 

Page 15



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2011/12 

6

Appendix A 

Certification fees 

Each year the Audit Commission sets a schedule of hourly rates for different levels of staff, 
for work relating to the certification of grant claims and returns.  When billing the Council 
for this work, we are required to use these rates.  They are shown in the table below. 

Role 2011/12 2010/11 

Engagement lead £325  £325  

Manager £180 £180 

Senior auditor £115 £115 

Other staff £85 £85 

Page 16



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2010/11 

7

Appendix B 

B Details of  claims and returns certified for 2011-12 

Claim or return Value (£) Amended? 
Amendment 
Amount (£) 

Qualified? 
Fee  

2011/12 
(£) 

Fee 
2010/11  
(£) 

Comments 

Housing and 
council tax 
benefit scheme 

20,065,750 N n/a Y 6,505 14,650 Fee reduction because of the lower number 
of errors identified in initial testing so that  
less further testing was required.  This was  
combined with an  increased reliance on the 
client staff for case testing. 

National non-
domestic rates 
return 

25,142,654 N n/a N 1,659 3,102 More reliance was placed on the control 
environment and therefore less testing was 
required in 2011/12. 

Disabled facilities 
grant 

demin     682 No audit work was required in 2011/12. 

Reporting to 
those charged 
with Governance 

    685 n/a Reporting was not billed separately in 
2010/11. 

Total 45,208,404  nil  8,849 18,434  

 

P
age 17



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2010/11 

8

Appendix C 

C Action plan 

 

Claim or return Recommendation 
Priority 

(L/M/H) 
Management response & implementation details 

Housing Benefits The council should continue  to use a contractor 
to undertake the housing benefits testing.  This has 
the benefit of both reducing the external audit fee 
but also means that the individual is able to focus 
on the work rather than having conflicting 
priorities. 

 

  

H The Council is currently assessing the structure 
within the benefits section as part of the 
transformation framework.   We will review our 
plans for the housing benefits audit, taking into our 
account our assessment of cost versus benefit of 
using external contractors  and agree these plans 
with external audit. 

Housing Benefits The Grant Thornton approach in 2012/13 
requires that the housing benefits initial testing is 
completed prior to the opinion being issued on the 
accounts (30 September).  A timetable should be 
prepared by the Council, agreed with us and 
sufficient staff resources earmarked to ensure that 
the timetable is achieved. 

H This will be discussed and agreed with External 
Audit and included in the planned timetable. 

P
age 18



Bromsgrove District Council
Certification work report 2010/11 

9

Appendix C 

Claim or return Recommendation 
Priority 

(L/M/H) 
Management response & implementation details 

Housing Benefits The Council did not prepare an adequate analytical 
review in advance of the audit and  there was some 
significant variance between years of some of the 
key entries  in the claim.  The Council should ensure 
that key variances are understood by officers prior 
to the claim being signed and full explanations 
should be provided within the claim working 
papers. 

H This will be addressed by officers as part of the 
claim preparation. 

P
age 19



© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 © 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 
 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 
 

No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from 
acting as a result of any material in this publication 

Page 20



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

AUDIT BOARD      14TH MARCH 2013 

 
GRANT THORNTON – AUDITING STANDARDS 2012/13 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service 
Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance 
and Resources 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To present Members with the Auditing Standards report for 2012/13 from the Councils 

External Auditors Grant Thornton. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and management responses. 
 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 There are no financial implications as a direct result of this report however robust internal 

financial control mechanisms as confirmed within this report reduce the costs associated 
with fraud and inaccurate accounting arrangements. 

 
  

Legal Implications 
 
3.2 Grant Thornton have a responsibility to ensure that robust systems are in place together 

with proactive communications with those charged with Governance. 
 
  

Service / Operational Implications 
 
3.3 External Auditors have a duty in  planning and performing their audit of the financial 

statements to understand how Cabinet, supported by the Council's management, and the 
Audit Board meets its responsibilities in the following areas: 

 

• Fraud 

• Law and regulation 

• Going concern 

• Related parties 

• Accounting for estimates 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT BOARD      14TH MARCH 2013 

 
 

The report attached at Appendix 1 details the management response in relation to the 
controls that are in place within Bromsgrove District Council to ensure that arrangements 
are in place to support the financial and operational management of the organisation. There 
are no specific concerns that have been highlighted by the External Auditors.  
 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
3.4 There are no implications arising out of this report. 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
      
4.1 As part of all audit work the auditors undertake a risk assessment to ensure that adequate 

controls are in place within the Council so reliance can be placed on internal systems. 
 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

   Appendix 1 – Grant Thornton Auditing Standards Report 2012/13 
    
    
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
  Individual internal audit reports. 
 
 
7. KEY 

 
N/a 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Jayne Pickering 
E Mail:  j.pickering@bromsgrove&redditch.gov.uk 
 
Tel:       01527-881207 

Page 22



Auditing Standards – Communication with the 

Audit Board and Cabinet 

Bromsgrove District Council 

 
Audit year 2012/2013 

Last updated 5 March 2013 

  

 
 

Page 23



 

 

 

Introduction 1 

Fraud Risk Assessment 2 

Table 1: Fraud Risk Assessment 3 

Law and Regulation 6 

Table 2:  Law and Regulation 6 

Table 3: Going Concern 7 

Table 4: Related Parties 10 

 

  

Contents 

Page 24



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1 

Introduction 

 

The purpose of this report is to ensure there is effective two-way communication between 
'Those Charged with Governance' and the Engagement Lead, the Council's external auditor. In 
most Councils the Audit Committee undertakes the role of 'Those Charged with Governance' 
and thus our communication is with the Audit Committee.   

In Bromsgrove the Cabinet retain the role of 'Those Charged with Governance' and the Audit 
Board receives reports on internal control and fraud.  The Audit  Board provides assurance on 
the operation of internal controls to Cabinet. 

As your external auditors we  have a responsibility under professional auditing standards to 
ensure there is effective communication with both the Audit Board and the Cabinet.. This 
means developing a good working relationship with members, while maintaining our 
independence and objectivity. If this relationship works well it helps us obtain information 
relevant to our audit and helps Cabinet members to fulfil their financial reporting 
responsibilities. The overall outcome is to reduce the risk of material misstatement. 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements we need to understand how 
Cabinet, supported by the Council's management, and the Audit Board meets its responsibilities 
in the following areas. 

· Fraud 

· Law and regulation 

· Going concern 

· Related parties 

· Accounting for estimates 
 

This report summarises the Cabinet's, Audit Board, management's and the external auditor's 
responsibilities in each of these areas, as explained in the International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland) (ISAs).  Our primary responsibility is to consider the risk of material 
misstatement. 

 

Each section of the report includes a series of questions that management have 
responded to. We would like to ask the Audit Board  and the Cabinet to consider 
these responses and confirm that it is satisfied with the arrangements 

. 

  

Page 25



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2 

Fraud Risk Assessment 
 

The ISAs define fraud as: 

"An intentional act by one or more individuals among management, those charged 
with governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of deception to obtain 
an unjust or illegal advantage." 

[ISA (UK&I) 240, paragraph 11] 

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud is with the Audit Committee and the 
Council's management. To do this: 

· management need to ensure there is a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence, 
with a commitment to honest and ethical behaviour; and 

· the Audit Committee oversight needs to includes the potential for the override of controls 
and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process. 
 

As your auditors our overall responsibility is to ensure the Council's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement due to either fraud or error. We are required to maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit, which means considering the potential for the 
intentional manipulation of the financial statements. 

We are also required to carry out a fraud risk assessment to inform our audit approach. This 
includes considering the following. 

· How management assesses the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements due 
to fraud.  

· Officers' response to assessed fraud risk, including any identified specific risks. 

· How officers communicates its process for assessing and responding to fraud risk to the 
Audit Board and Cabinet 

· How management communicates its views on ethical behaviour to the Audit Board and 
Cabinet 

· How the Audit Board and Cabinet exercise oversight of managements fraud risk 
assessment and response processes and the internal controls to mitigate these risks. 

· What knowledge the Audit Board and Cabinet has of actual, alleged or suspected fraud. 
 

To help us in making our fraud risk assessment management have responded to the following 
questions. 

 

  

Page 26



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3 

Table 1: Fraud Risk Assessment 
 

Question Management response 

1. What is management’s 

assessment of the risk of 

material misstatement in the 

financial statements due to 

fraud? 

Is this consistent with the 

feedback from your risk 

management processes? 

Although there is an on-going risk of fraud being 

committed against the Council, arrangements are in 

place to both prevent and detect fraud. These include 

work carried out by Internal Audit on overall fraud risk 

areas and work on Council Tax and Housing Benefit 

fraud. 

There is on-going communication between external 

audit and responsible officers on emerging technical 

issues.  Officers also attend technical updates. 

Financial monitoring reports also highlight areas of 

variance within the capital and revenue budgets and this 

assists management in identifying areas of material 

misstatement within the accounts. 

The Council is currently reviewing and updating its risk 

management processes and procedures. 

Management considers there is a low risk of material 

misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud. 

 

2. Are you aware of any 

instances of fraud, either 

within the Council as a whole 

or within specific departments 

since 1 April 2012? 

There are some areas that are inherently at risk from 

fraud such as: 

■ Council Tax 

■ Benefit fraud 

■ Single person discount 

 

However, there is a dedicated benefits investigation 

team which investigates any fraud. 

 

The Audit Board receives any adhoc fraud reports.  

 

There are no material instances of fraud that have been 

identified during the year.  

 

 

Page 27



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4 

3. Do you suspect fraud may 

be occurring, either within the 

Council or within specific 

departments? 

− Have you identified any 

specific fraud risks? 

− Do you have any concerns 

there are areas that are at risk 

of fraud? 

− Are there particular 

locations within the Council 

where fraud is more likely to  

occur? 

Evidence published by the National Fraud Authority 

amongst others, suggests that fraud is committed in all 

organisations to varying degrees, so it is likely that some 

fraud is occurring in the Authority. 

 

 

Locations handling income, particularly in the form of 

cash, are more likely to be at risk of fraud.  However 

management does not consider these to be significant 

risks. 

  

 

4. Are you satisfied that the 

overall control environment, 

including: 

-  the process for reviewing the 

system of internal control;   

- internal controls, including 

segregation of duties;  

exist and work effectively? 

− If not where are the risk 

areas? 

− What other controls are in 

place to help prevent, deter or 

detect fraud? 

Yes - Internal Audit include fraud risks in their planning 

process and act as an effective internal control against 

fraud. 

 

Sound systems of internal control with roles and 

responsibilities are defined in  various places such as the 

Constitution.   

 

The role of internal audit, provides assurance that the 

Council's internal controls are in place.  An annual 

report is produced and is available prior to the annual 

accounts being signed and approved. 

 

 

Page 28



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5 

5. How do you communicate 

to employees about your views 

on business practices and 

ethical behaviour? 

How do you encourage staff to 

report their concerns about 

fraud? 

− What concerns are staff 

expected to report about 

fraud? 

There is a Fraud Strategy and a Whistleblowing 

procedure in place which explain the procedures to 

follow. 

Employees are aware of the anti-fraud of the anti-fraud 

and corruption strategy, details are available on the 

website. 

 

6. From a fraud and 

corruption perspective, what 

are considered to be high-risk 

posts? 

− How are the risks relating to 

these posts identified, 

assessed and managed?  

 

There are not any significantly high-risk posts identified. 

 

7. Are you aware of any related 

party relationships or 

transactions that could give 

rise to instances of fraud? 

− How do you mitigate the 

risks associated with fraud 

related to related party 

relationships and 

transactions? 

 

2011/12 financial statement disclosure of related party 

transactions does not identify potential fraud risk. 

Members and officers are required to make full 

disclosure of any relationships that impact on their 

roles. Members are required to declare any relevant 

interests at Council and Committee meetings. 

 

8. What arrangements are in 

place to report fraud issues to 

Audit Board? 

 

Internal Audit provide the Audit Board with updates of 

their work on fraud prevention and detection, including 

any significant identified frauds and the action taken. 

Any adhoc investigations are reported to the Audit 

Board 

 

 
 
  

Page 29



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6 

Law and Regulation 

 

The ISAs (ISA (UK&I) 250) require us to consider the impact that law and regulation and 
litigation may have on the Council's financial statements.  The factors that may result in 
particular risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error are: 

· the operational regulatory framework - this covers the legislation that governs the 
operations of the Council. 
 

· the financial reporting framework - according to the requirements of International Financial 
Reporting Standards, the Code of Accounting for Local Authorities in England and 
relevant Directions. 

· taxation considerations - for example compliance with Value Added Tax and Income Tax 
regulations. 

· government policies that otherwise impact on the Council's business. 

· other external factors; and 

· litigation and claims against the Council. 
 

Where we become aware of information about a possible instance of noncompliance we need 
to gain an understanding of it to evaluate the possible effect on the financial statements. 

The ISAs also require us to make enquiries of management and TCWG about the arrangements 
in place to comply with law and regulation. To help with this, management have responded to 
the following questions. 

 

Table 2:  Law and Regulation 

 

 

Question Management response 

1. How does management 

gain assurance that all relevant 

laws and regulations have 

been complied with? 

 

 

The Monitoring Officer will advise the Council's 

Management team and Councillors as appropriate.  

2. How is the Audit Board and 

Cabinet provided with 

assurance that all relevant 

laws and regulations have 

been complied with? 

 

Assurance of complying with the Council's Constitution 

is provided through the Annual Governance Statement 

which is reported to Cabinet. 

Page 30



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7 

3. Have there been any 

instances of noncompliance 

with law and regulation since  

1 April 2012? 

 

No. 

4. Is there any actual or 

potential litigation or claims 

that would affect the financial 

statements? 

None. 

 

Going Concern 

 

Going concern is a key concept in the preparation of the financial statements for the Council. 
The accounting concept of going concern refers to the basis of measurement of an 
organisation's assets and liabilities in its accounts (that is, the basis on which those assets and 
liabilities are recorded and included in the accounts). 

The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial 
statements. Entities are viewed as continuing in business for the foreseeable future. Assets and 
liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realise its assets and discharge 
its liabilities in the normal course of business. If the entity could not continue as a going 
concern, assets and liabilities would need to be recorded in the accounts on a different basis, 
reflecting their value on the winding up of the entity. Consequently, assets would be likely to be 
recorded at a much lower break-up value and medium- and long-term liabilities would become 
short term liabilities. 

The Council is not subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities. 
However, consideration of the key features of the going concern provides an indication of the 
Council's financial resilience. It may indicate that some classes of assets or liabilities should not 
be valued on an on-going basis. 

We discuss the going concern assumption with key Council officers and review the Council's 
financial and operating performance. Below are key questions on the going concern assumption 
which we would like the Cabinet to consider. 

 
Table 3 – Going concern 
 
 

Question Management response 

1. Has a report been received 

from management forming a 

view on going concern? 

 

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources (as 

s151 Officer) is satisfied that the budget proposals are 

based on robust estimates, and that the level of reserves 

is adequate. This was reported in the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy. 

Page 31



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8 

2. Are the financial 

assumptions in that report 

(e.g., future levels of income 

and expenditure) consistent 

with the Council's Business 

Plan and the financial 

information provided to the 

Council throughout the year? 

The Financial Plan is agreed at the same time as the Council 

Plan. The financial plan makes clear reference to the Council 

Plan as the basis for the financial considerations in setting the 

medium term budget. The financial assumptions are therefore 

consistent with the Council Plan. Reports in year are consistent 

with the budget set. 

 

3. Are the implications of 

statutory or policy changes 

appropriately reflected in the 

Business Plan, 

financial forecasts and report 

on going concern? 

 

The financial plan considered the government changes 

in terms of grants. The plan sets out the likely 

implications of the Governments Resources Review and 

other changes to local government finance, such as the 

new Council Tax Support scheme and other Council tax 

reforms being implemented from 1st April 2013 in 

addition to the Business rates retention scheme.  

4. Have there been any 

significant issues raised with 

the Audit Board during the 

year which could cast doubts 

on the assumptions made? 

(Examples include adverse 

comments raised by internal 

and external audit regarding 

financial performance or 

significant weaknesses in 

systems of financial control). 

 

No 

Page 32



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 9 

5. Does a review of available 

financial information identify 

any adverse financial 

indicators including negative 

cash flow or poor or 

deteriorating performance 

against the better payment 

practice code? 

If so, what action is being 

taken to improve financial 

performance? 

 

No. 

6. Does the Council have 

sufficient staff in post, with 

the appropriate skills and 

experience, particularly at 

senior manager level, to 

ensure the delivery of the 

Council’s objectives? 

If not, what action is being 

taken to obtain those skills? 

Yes. 

 
 

Accounting Estimates 

 
Local Authorities need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial 
statements. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing accounting estimates. The 
objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are reasonable and the related 
disclosures are adequate. 

Under this standard We have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement for 
accounting estimates by understanding how the Council identifies the transactions, events and 
conditions that may give rise to the need for an accounting estimate. 

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the 
accounts. We need to be aware of all estimates that the Council are using as part of their 
accounts preparation; these are detailed in appendix 1 to this report. 

 The audit procedures we conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that: 

· the estimate is reasonable; and 

· estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the 
financial statements. 

Page 33



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10 

Related Parties 

 
For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with IAS 24: Related party disclosures. The 
Code identifies the following as related parties to local government bodies: 

· entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are 
controlled by the authority (i.e. subsidiaries); 

· associates; 

· joint ventures in which the authority is a venturer; 

· an entity that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the 
authority; 

· key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management 
personnel, and 

· post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the authority, 
or of any entity that is a related party of the authority. 
 

The Code notes that, in considering materiality, regard should be had to the definition of 
materiality, which requires materiality to be judged from the viewpoint of both the authority 
and the related party. 

ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions 
and obtain an understanding of the controls that you have established to identify such 
transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures 
you make in the financial statements are complete and accurate.  

 
  

Page 34



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11 

Table 4: Related Parties 

Question Management response 

1. Who are the Council's 

related parties? 

 

 

The Council discloses its related parties under the 

following headings: 

(1) Government - central government has control 

influence over the Council as the Council needs to act 

in accordance with its statutory responsibilities. 

(2) Pension Fund - this party is subject to common 

control by central government. 

(3) Precepts & Levies - these parties are subject to 

common control by central government and thus might 

be empowered to transact on non-commercial terms. 

The Council is bound to pay the amount demanded 

from these parties through precept or levy. 

4)Group relationship with Atrix. 

(5) Assisted Organisations - the provision of financial 

assistance by the Council to such parties or voluntary 

organisations may give the Council influence on how 

the funds are to be administered and applied. 

(6) Members and Officers - Certain Members and 

Officers may have controlling influence or related 

interests with other of the Council's related party 

organisations, such that they may be in a position to 

significantly influence the policies of the Council. 

Page 35



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12 

2. What are the controls in 

place to identify, account for, 

and disclose, related party 

transactions and  

relationships? 

 

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying 

the nature of a related party and reported value 

including: 

■ Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members, a 

register for pecuniary interests in contracts for Officers 

and Senior Managers requiring disclosure of related 

party transactions. 

■ Annual return from senior managers/officers 

requiring confirmation that read and understood the 

declaration requirements and stating details of any 

known related party interests. 

■ Review of in-year income and expenditure 

transactions with known identified related parties from 

prior year or known history. 

■ Review of the accounts payable and receivable 

systems and identification of amounts paid to/from 

assisted or voluntary organisation 

■ Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in 

relation to the related parties identified. 

■ Review of minutes of decision making meetings to 

identify any member declarations and therefore related 

parties. 

 

Page 36



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 
13 

Appendix 1 Accounting Estimates 

 

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate 

Controls used to identify 
estimates 

Whether Management 
have used an expert 

Underlying assumptions 
: - Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty 
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates 
 

Has there been a 
change in accounting 
method in year? 
 

Property plant & 
equipment 
valuations. 
 

The Council has a contract 
with Worcestershire County 
Council property  department 
to manage its asset base, 
including undertaking annual 
valuations.  The Valuer is a 
RICS/CIB Member) and 
reviews are made inline 
with RICS guidance on the 
basis of 5 year valuations with 
interim reviews. 
 

Capital Accountant 
notifies the valuer of the 
program of rolling 
valuations or of any 
conditions that warrant an 
interim re-valuation. 
 

Yes, the Worcestershire 
County Council valuer 
 

Valuations are made in-
line with RICS guidance - 
reliance on an expert. 
 

No. 
 

Estimated 
remaining useful 
lives of PPE. 

The following asset categories 
have general asset lives: 
■ Buildings 50 years 
■ Equipment/vehicles 5 
years 
■ Plant 12 years 
■ Infrastructure 40 years. 
 

Consistent asset lives 
applied to each asset 
category. 
 

Yes, the Worcestershire 
County Council valuer 
 
 

The method makes some 
generalisations.  
For example, 
buildings tend to have a 
useful life  of 50 years. 
Although in specific 
examples based upon a 
valuation review, a new 
building can have a 
life as short as 25 years or 
as long. as 70 years 
depending on the 
construction materials 
used. This life would be 
recorded in accordance 
with the local qualified 
RICS or CIB Member. 
 

No 

P
age 37



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 
14 

 
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate 
Controls used to identify 
estimates 

Whether Management 
have used an expert 

Underlying assumptions 
: - Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty 
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates 
 

Has there been a 
change in accounting 
method in year? 
 

Depreciation & 
Amortisation. 
 

Depreciation is provided for 
on all fixed assets with a finite 
useful life ona straight-line 
basis. 
 

Consistent application of 
depreciation method 
across all assets. 
 

No The length of the life is 
determined at the point of 
acquisition or revaluation 
according to: 
■ Assets are not 
depreciated in the year of 
acquisition; a full year’s 
depreciation is charged in 
the year of disposal 
■ Assets that are not fully 
constructed are not 
depreciated until they are 
brought into use. 
 

No. 
 

Impairments Assets are assessed at each 
year-end as to whether there 
is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Where 
indications exist and any 
possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated and, 
where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall 

Assets are assessed 
at each year-end as to 
whether there is any 
indication that an asset 
may be impaired. 
 

Worcestershire County 

Council Valuer.; plus all 
the heads of service are 
asked to review a list of 
assets and confirm they are 
still in use, life appropriate 

etc. 

 
 
 

Valuations are made in-
line with RICS guidance - 
reliance one expert. 
 

No 

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate 

Controls used to identify 
estimates 

Whether Management 
have used an expert 

Underlying assumptions 
: - Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty 
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates 

Has there been a 
change in accounting 
method in year? 
 

P
age 38



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 
15 

 
Non adjusting 
events - events 
after the BS date 

S151 Officer makes the 
assessment. If the event is 
indicative of conditions. that 
arose after the balance sheet 
date then this is an 
unadjusting event. 
For these events only a note 
to the accounts is included, 
identifying the nature of the 
event and where possible 
estimates of the financial 
effect 
 

Heads of Services 
notify the S151Officer 
 

This would be 
considered on. individual 
circumstances. 
 
 

This would be considered 
on. individual 
circumstances. 
 

N/A 

Overhead 
allocation. 
 

The Cost Centre 
Management Team 
apportion central support 
costs to services based on 
fixed bases as detailed in the 
'Allocation Summary' 
spread sheet. 
 

All support service 
cost centres are allocated 
according to the agreed 
'Allocation Summary' 
spread sheet. 
 

No Apportionment bases are 
reviewed regularly to 
ensure equitable 

No 

Measurement of 
Financial 
Instruments. 
 

Council values financial 
instruments at fair value 
based on the advice of their 
internal treasury consultants 
and other finance 
professionals. 
 
 
 

Take advice from 
finance professionals. 
 

Yes Take advice from finance 
professionals. 
 

No 

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate 
 

Controls used to 
identify estimates 
 

Whether 
Management 
have used an 
expert 
 

Underlying 
assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty 
- Consideration of 
alternative estimates 
 

Has there 
been a 
change in 
accounting 
method in year? 
 

Bad Debt A provision is estimated using An aged debt listing is No Consistent proportion No 

P
age 39



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 
16 

Provision. 
 

a proportion basis of an aged 
debt/listing. 
 

provided routinely and 
finance  calculate the 
provision. 
 

used across aged debt as 
per the SORP. 
 

Provisions for 
liabilities. 
 

Provisions are made where an 
event has taken place that 
gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that 
probably requires settlement 
by a transfer of economic 
benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the 
obligation. 
Provisions are charged as an 
expense to the appropriate 
service line in the CI&ES in 
the year that the Council 
becomes aware of the 
obligation, and are measured 
at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the 
expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
 

Charged in the year 
that the Council becomes 
aware of the obligation. 
 

No Estimated settlements are 
reviewed at the end of 
each financial year – where 
it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of 
economic benefits will 
now be required (or a 
lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), 
the provision is reversed 
and credited back to the 
relevant service. Where 
some or all of the payment 
required to settle a 
provision is expected to 
be recovered from another 
party (e.g. from an 
insurance claim), this is 
only recognised as income 
for the relevant service if it 
is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be 
received by the Council. 
 

No 

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate 
 

Controls used to 
identify estimates 
 

Whether 
Management 
have used an expert 
 

Underlying 
assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty 
Consideration of 
alternative estimates 
 

Has there been a 
change in accounting 
method in year? 
 

Accruals CCMT collate accruals of 
Expenditure 
and Income. Activity is 
accounted for in the financial 

Activity is accounted 
for in the financial year 
that it takes placw ( in line 
with thresholds identified 

No Accruals for income and 
expenditure have been 
principally based on 
known values. Where 

No 

P
age 40



 

© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 
17 

year that it takes place, not 
when money is paid or 
received. 
 

in the accounting policies) 
, not when money is paid 
or 
received. 
 

accruals have had to be 
estimated the latest 
available information has 
been used. 
 

Landfill 
Allowance 
liability. 
 

As landfill is used, a liability 
and an expense are 
recognised. The liability 
is discharged either by 
surrendering allowances or by 
payment of a cash/ penalty to 
DEFRA (or by a 
combination). 
 

Finance check 
calculations from 
DEFRA. 
 

No The liability is measured at 
the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to 
meet the obligation, 
normally the market price 
of the number of 
allowances required to 
meet the liability at the 
reporting date. However, 
where some of the 
obligation will be met by 
paying a cash penalty to 
DEFRA, that part of 
its liability is measured at 
the cost of the penalty. 
 

No 

 

 

P
age 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 

AUDIT BOARD   14TH MARCH 2013 

     
 

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  

Wards Affected  All 

Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To present to members the Grant Thornton Audit Plan 2012/13. A copy 

of this document is attached to this report as Appendix A. 
  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Members are asked to note and agree the 2012/13 Audit Opinion Plan 
 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 The fee associated with the External Audit Opinion and audit of 

accounting statements and consideration of the Councils arrangements 
for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency is £77k. This 
reflects a 30% reduction from 2011/12 Audit fee. 

 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Council has a statutory responsibility to formally prepare accounts 
in compliance with national guidelines and ensure these are audited by 
an audited body. 

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 Attached at Appendix A is the 2012/13 Audit Opinion Plan . The Plan 

sets out work that the Grant Thornton propose to undertake in relation 
to the Audit of the financial accounts for 2012/13 and any risks that 
have will require additional review and consideration. 

 
3.4 The Audit will include an understanding of the organisational 

operations together with issues that may impact on the Council in the 
future. This assessment results in the External Audit consideration of 

Agenda Item 6

Page 43



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   14TH MARCH 2013 

     
 

the risks associated with the accounts and the Appendix details the 
level of risk allocated to the services we provide.  

 
3.5 The work by the Grant Thornton will enable a robust opinion to be 

made across all the internal control and accounting arrangements that 
the Council has in place.  

 
 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.6 None as a direct result of this report 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 

accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. Risk management 
arrangements in place across the organisation ensure that risks are 
addressed and mitigated. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Annual Audit Plan 2012/13 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 44



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

. 

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

fo
r 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 

P
h

il
 J

o
n

e
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

 

T
 0

1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

2
3
2

 

E
 p

h
il.

w
.j
o

n
e
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

Z
o

e
 T

h
o

m
a
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
 0

1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

2
7
7

 

E
 z

o
e
.t

h
o
m

a
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

A
z
iz

u
l 

Is
la

m
 

A
u
d
it
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 

T
 0

1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

4
1
6

 

E
 a

z
iz

u
l.
is

la
m

@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

Page 45



T
h

e 
co

n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 r
el

at
e 

o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

b
el

ie
ve

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

au
d

it
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

 I
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 r
ec

o
rd

 o
f 

al
l 

th
e 

re
le

va
n

t 
m

at
te

rs
, 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
h

an
ge

, 
an

d
 i

n
 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

w
e 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e 
h

el
d

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

al
l 
o

f 
th

e 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
o

r 
an

y 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 s
o

le
ly

 

fo
r 

yo
u
r 

b
en

ef
it

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e 
q
u
o

te
d

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

o
u
r 

p
ri

o
r 

w
ri

tt
en

 

co
n

se
n

t.
 W

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

ac
ce

p
t 

an
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
n

ed
 t

o
 a

n
y 

th
ir

d
 p

ar
ty

 a
ct

in
g,

 

o
r 

re
fr

ai
n

in
g 

fr
o

m
 a

ct
in

g 
o

n
 t

h
e 

b
as

is
 o

f 
th

e 
co

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

, 
as

 t
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 w

as
 n

o
t 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r,

 n
o

r 
in

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r,
 a

n
y 

o
th

er
 p

u
rp

o
se

. 

Page 46



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 
 

1.
U

n
d

er
st

an
d
in

g 
yo

u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
 

2.
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
 r

el
ev

an
t 

to
 y

o
u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 
 

3.
O

u
r 

au
d
it

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 
 

4.
A

n
 a

u
d

it
 f

o
cu

se
d

 o
n

 r
is

ks
 

 

5.
S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

6.
O

th
er

 r
is

ks
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

7.
G

ro
u
p
 s

co
p

e 
an

d
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

 

8.
R

es
u
lt

s 
o
f 

in
te

ri
m

 w
o

rk
 

 

9.
V

al
u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 
 

10
.

L
o

gi
st

ic
s 

an
d

 o
u
r 

te
am

 
 

11
.

F
ee

s 
an

d
 i
n

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 

 

12
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

au
d
it

 m
at

te
rs

 w
it

h
 t

h
o
se

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 
 

 
 

Page 47



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

U
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
yo

u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
s

/o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 

1
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s

 

 �
P

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 l
e

s
s
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

�
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
  

s
o
  
th

a
t 

  

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

a
t 

p
ru

d
e
n
t 

le
v
e
ls

. 

2
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 p
o

o
li

n
g

 

�
L
o
c
a
lis

in
g
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 

m
e
a
n
s
 a

  
tr

a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

ri
s
k
s
 

fr
o
m

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

to
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
T

h
is

 r
is

k
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 j
o

in
e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 

S
o
lih

u
ll 

P
o
o
l,
 

3
. 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
re

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 b

o
th

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

te
c
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

p
la

c
e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 

o
n
-g

o
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
a
t 

c
u
ts

 

ri
g

h
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

4
. 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e
n

e
fi

t 
/C

o
u

n
c

il
 

T
a
x
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

�
C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

g
ra

n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

u
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 o

n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

g
ra

n
te

d
 l
o

c
a
lly

. 

�
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

w
ill

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 

to
 '
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
c
re

d
it
'.
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

h
a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t.

 

5
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a

 k
e
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 A

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

o
r 

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
  

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

to
 t

h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

�
W

e
  
w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n
. 

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
  
g
a
in

 a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h
e
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

w
e
 w

ill
: 

 

�
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 i
ts

 s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

�
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 p

a
th

 t
o
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
  

W
e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
  

w
h
e
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t.

 

In
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

ch
al

le
n

ge
s 

an
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
is

 f
ac

in
g.

  
W

e 
se

t 
o

u
t 

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

o
u
r 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
b

el
o

w
. 

Page 48



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 r
el

ev
an

t 
to

 y
o

u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 

In
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 w

e 
al

so
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

ke
y 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e 
se

ct
o

r 
an

d
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
o

f 
n

at
io

n
al

 a
u
d

it
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e 

C
o

d
e 

o
f 

A
u
d

it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 g
u
id

an
ce

. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

1
.F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

�
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
 C

o
d
e
 

o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 

�
R

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 

2
. 

L
e

g
is

la
ti

o
n

 

�
L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

�
W

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 A

c
t 
 2

0
1
2

 

 

3
. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

�
A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
(A

G
S

) 

�
E

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 

 

4
. 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s

 

�
P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 (

L
G

P
S

) 

5
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

�
M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

w
it
h
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

�
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

p
la

n
s
 

6
. 

O
th

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
b
m

it
 a

 W
h
o
le

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
a
c
k
  

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

p
le

te
s
 g

ra
n
t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
u
d
it
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

 

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 

W
e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

�
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

IP
F

A
 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 

�
g
ra

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 i
n

 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 v
ie

w
 w

h
e
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

G
S

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 A

G
S

  
a
n
d
 

th
e
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 o

u
r 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

o
u
r 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

W
G

A
 p

a
c
k
 i
n

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
lim

it
e
d
 

a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
) 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

e
rt

if
y
 g

ra
n
t 

c
la

im
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

Page 49



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

D
e

v
is

e
 a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

(p
la

n
n

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
re

li
a

n
c

e
?

) 

O
u
r 

au
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

G
lo

b
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

E
n

s
u

re
s
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

IS
A

s
) 

C
re

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

il
o

rs
  

a
u

d
it

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s

 

S
to

re
s
 a

u
d

it
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

e
s

  

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
ti
ty

 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t’
s
 

fo
c
u

s
 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r’

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

In
h

e
re

n
t 
 

ri
s
k
s
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
 

ri
s
k
s
 

O
th

e
r 

ri
s
k
s
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 

Y
e

s
 

N
o

 

�
T

e
s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w
 

�
T

e
s
ts

 o
f 
d

e
ta

il 

�
T

e
s
t 

o
f 
d

e
ta

il 

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

ID
E

A
 

E
x
tr

a
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

d
a

ta
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
u

tp
u

t 

to
 t
e

a
m

s
 

A
n

a
ly

s
e

 d
a

ta
 

u
s
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

o
b

ta
in

 r
e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

a
s

 a
 w

h
o

le
 a

re
 f

re
e

 

fr
o

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
n

 a
ll

 

m
a

te
ri

a
la

 r
e
s

p
e

c
ts

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e

 

o
f 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 u
s

in
g

 o
u

r 

g
lo

b
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 

N
o
te

: 

a
. 

A
n

 i
te

m
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

if
, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 o

r 
n

o
n

-

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
h

o
w

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 

fa
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

Page 50



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
n

 a
u
d

it
 f

o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 r

is
ks

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
M

a
te

ri
a

l 
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?
 

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
 

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s

k
 

 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

ri
s

k
?

 

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
is

k
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

 

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

  

o
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

O
th

e
r 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
te

d
 

P
 

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

Y
e
s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

M
e
d
iu

m
  

O
th

e
r 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
rr

e
c
t 

P
  

C
o
s
ts

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

Y
e
s
 

W
e
lf
a
re

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
M

e
d
iu

m
 

O
th

e
r 

W
e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
m

p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 

c
o
m

p
u
te

d
 

P
 

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 

o
th

e
r 

re
v
e
n
u
e
s
 (

fe
e
s
 

&
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
) 

Y
e
s
 

O
th

e
r 

re
v
e
n
u
e
s
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

(G
a
in

s
)/

 L
o
s
s
 o

n
 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

n
o
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 P

o
o
l 

N
o
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

P
re

c
e
p
ts

 a
n
d
 L

e
v
ie

s
 

N
o
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

W
e 

u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 a
 r

is
k 

b
as

ed
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
er

eb
y 

w
e 

fo
cu

s 
au

d
it

 e
ff

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 a
re

as
 w

h
er

e 
w

e 
h

av
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

 r
is

k 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

in
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
. T

h
e 

ta
b

le
 b

el
o

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

h
o

w
 o

u
r 

au
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 f

o
cu

se
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
ri

sk
s 

w
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
h

ro
u
gh

 o
u
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

an
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
n

at
io

n
al

 r
is

ks
 a

ff
ec

ti
n

g 
th

e 
se

ct
o

r.
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
ri

sk
 a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 w
o

rk
 a

re
 g

iv
en

 b
el

o
w

: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
–

 S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

ar
e 

ty
p

ic
al

ly
 n

o
n

-r
o

u
ti

n
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s,
 a

re
as

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
ju

d
ge

m
en

t 
o

r 
th

o
se

 a
re

as
 w

h
er

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 h
ig

h
 u

n
d

er
ly

in
g 

(i
n

h
er

en
t)

 
ri

sk
 o

f 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t.

 W
e 

w
ill

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 a
n

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

o
f 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 (

if
 a

p
p

lic
ab

le
) 

ar
o

u
n

d
 t

h
e 

ri
sk

s 
an

d
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

d
et

ai
le

d
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g.
 

O
th

e
r 
–

 O
th

er
 r

is
ks

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

ar
e 

ty
p

ic
al

ly
 t

h
o

se
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

 c
yc

le
s 

an
d
 b

al
an

ce
s 

w
h

er
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
h

ig
h

 v
al

u
es

, l
ar

ge
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
o

f 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

an
d

 r
is

ks
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
o

m
, f

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, s
ys

te
m

 c
h

an
ge

s 
an

d
 i
ss

u
es

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 f

ro
m

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

ye
ar

s 
au

d
it

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 a

ss
es

s 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

er
ta

ke
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 
te

st
in

g,
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

d
u
ce

d
 w

h
er

e 
w

e 
ca

n
 r

el
y 

o
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 

N
o

n
e
 –

 O
u
r 

ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

h
as

 n
o

t 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
 r

is
k 

o
f 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t.
 W

e 
w

ill
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

 s
u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l 
b

al
an

ce
s.

  
W

h
er

e 
an

 i
te

m
 i
n

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u
n

ts
 i
s 

n
o

t 
m

at
er

ia
l 
w

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

ca
rr

y 
o

u
t 

d
et

ai
le

d
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g.
 

 

Page 51



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
n

 a
u
d

it
 f

o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 r

is
ks

 (
co

n
ti

n
u
ed

) 
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?
 

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
 

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s

k
 

 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

ri
s

k
?

 

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
is

k
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

 

In
te

re
s
t 

p
a
y
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
im

ila
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
s
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

P
e
n
s
io

n
 I

n
te

re
s
t 

c
o
s
t 

Y
e
s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

In
te

re
s
t 

 &
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 

N
o
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

 

R
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

Im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 

N
o
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
: 

In
c
o
m

e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 &

 

g
a
in

 o
n
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 

N
o
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

 

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 

Y
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a

x
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

N
N

D
R

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

Y
e
s
 

N
N

D
R

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

g
ra

n
t&

 o
th

e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
9

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra

n
ts

 &
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n

 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
) 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

Page 52



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
n

 a
u
d

it
 f

o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 r

is
ks

 (
co

n
ti

n
u
ed

) 
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?
 

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
 

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s

k
 

 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

ri
s

k
?

 

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
is

k
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

 

(S
u
rp

lu
s
)/

 D
e
fi
c
it
 o

n
 

re
v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
o
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

A
c
tu

a
ri
a

l 
(g

a
in

s
)/

 

L
o
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 

fu
n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 &
 

lia
b
ili

ti
e

s
 

Y
e
s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

O
th

e
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

(g
a
in

s
)/

 L
o
s
s
e
s
 

N
o
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
/ 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
   

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 &
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
  

In
ta

n
g
ib

le
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
N

o
 

In
ta

n
g
ib

le
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 (
lo

n
g
 &

 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

) 

N
o
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 
L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

D
e
b
to

rs
 (

lo
n
g
 &

 s
h
o
rt

 

te
rm

) 

Y
e
s
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 h
e
ld

 f
o
r 

s
a
le

 
N

o
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

In
v
e
n
to

ri
e

s
 

N
o
 

In
v
e
n
to

ri
e

s
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

Í
 

C
a
s
h
 &

 c
a
s
h
 

E
q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

B
a
n
k
 &

 C
a
s
h
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

Page 53



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
n

 a
u
d

it
 f

o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 r

is
ks

 (
co

n
ti

n
u
ed

) 

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
M

a
te

ri
a

l 
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?
 

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
 

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s

k
 

 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

ri
s

k
?

 

D
e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
is

k
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

 

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 (

lo
n
g

 &
 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

) 

Y
e
s
 

D
e
b
t 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

C
re

d
it
o
rs

 (
lo

n
g
 &

 

S
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

) 

Y
e
s
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

O
th

e
r 

C
re

d
it
o
rs

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 
n
o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
e
ri
o

d
 

P
  

P
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 (

lo
n
g
 &

 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

) 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 

Y
e
s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

E
q
u
it
y
 

L
o
w

 
N

o
n
e
 

P
 

Page 54



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

'S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

o
ft

en
 r

el
at

e 
to

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
n

o
n

-r
o

u
ti

n
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 j
u
d
gm

en
ta

l 
m

at
te

rs
. N

o
n

-r
o

u
ti

n
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

th
at

 a
re

 u
n

u
su

al
, e

it
h

er
 d

u
e 

to
 s

iz
e 

o
r 

n
at

u
re

, a
n

d
 t

h
at

 t
h

er
ef

o
re

 o
cc

u
r 

in
fr

eq
u
en

tl
y.

 J
u
d

gm
en

ta
l m

at
te

rs
 m

ay
 i
n

cl
u
d
e 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
es

ti
m

at
es

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
er

e 
is

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

u
n

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
' (

IS
A

 3
15

).
  

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
o

u
tl

in
e 

th
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ri
sk

s 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

.  
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o
 p

re
su

m
ed

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
p

p
lic

ab
le

 t
o

 a
ll 

au
d

it
s 

u
n

d
er

 a
u
d
it

in
g 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

(I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u
d
it

in
g 
–
 I

S
A

s)
  
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
is

te
d

 b
el

o
w

: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 c

y
c
le

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 

re
v
e

n
u

e
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
. 
 W

e
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

b
u

t 
th

e
 p

re
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
. 

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
U

n
d

e
r 

IS
A

 2
4

0
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
in

 a
ll 

e
n

ti
ti
e

s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
: 

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
ju

d
g

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

�
T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s
 

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

 

 

Page 55



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

O
th

er
 r

is
k
s 

T
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r 

sh
o

u
ld

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
d

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
en

ti
ty

's
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
, i

n
cl

u
d
in

g 
re

le
va

n
t 

co
n

tr
o

l 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

, o
ve

r 
th

o
se

 r
is

ks
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

, 
in

 t
h

e 

au
d

it
o

r'
s 

ju
d

gm
en

t,
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
ri

sk
s 

o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

at
 t

h
e 

as
se

rt
io

n
 l
ev

el
 t

o
 a

n
 a

cc
ep

ta
b

ly
 l

o
w

 l
ev

el
 w

it
h

 a
u
d

it
 e

vi
d

en
ce

 o
b

ta
in

ed
 

o
n

ly
 f

ro
m

 s
u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
(I

S
A

 3
15

).
  

O
th

e
r 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 

ri
s

k
s

 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
/ 

C
re

d
it
o

rs
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 

n
o

t 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
e

ri
o

d
 

�
W

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 a

s
s
e

rt
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

to
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 r
is

k
 o

f 

m
a

te
ri

a
l m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

T
e

s
ts

 o
f 
d

e
ta

il 
o

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
  

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

�
T

e
s
ts

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 f
o

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

re
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

R
e

m
u

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t 

�
W

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 a

s
s
e

rt
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

to
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 r
is

k
 o

f 

m
a

te
ri

a
l m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

T
e

s
ts

 o
f 
d

e
ta

il 
o

n
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
p

a
y
ro

ll 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

�
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 in

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

 

W
e
lf
a

re
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

im
p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 c

o
m

p
u

te
d

 

 

�
W

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 

a
s
s
e

rt
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

to
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

�
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
la

im
 i
n

it
ia

l s
a

m
p

le
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
  

Page 56



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

G
ro

u
p

 a
u
d

it
 s

co
p

e 
an

d
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

IS
A

 6
00

 r
eq

u
ir

es
 t

h
at

 a
s 

G
ro

u
p

 a
u
d

it
o

rs
 w

e 
o

b
ta

in
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
au

d
it

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
p

o
n

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

co
n

so
lid

at
io

n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 t
o

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
gr

o
u
p

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
p

ar
ed

, i
n

 a
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l 
re

sp
ec

ts
, i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 

fr
am

ew
o

rk
. 

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t?
 

L
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

u
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 6

0
0

 
R

is
k

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
P

la
n

n
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 

B
ro

m
s
g

ro
v
e

 A
rt

s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
T

ru
s
t 

Y
e

s
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 n

o
t 
a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
  

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
 v

a
lu

e
r 

. 
C

o
n

fi
rm

 w
it
h

 

th
e

 T
ru

s
te

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ro
m

s
g

ro
v
e

  

A
rt

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
T

ru
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 

a
re

 n
o

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
r 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

Page 57



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
in

te
ri

m
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 

S
c

o
p
e

 

A
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
in

te
ri

m
 a

u
d
it

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 i
n

 a
d

va
n

ce
 o

f 
o

u
r 

fi
n

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d
it

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

, w
e 

co
n

si
d

er
: 

•
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d

it
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 

•
in

te
rn

al
 a

u
d
it

's
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 k
ey

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s 

•
w

al
kt

h
ro

u
gh

 t
es

ti
n

g 
to

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 w

h
et

h
er

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
en

te
d
 a

s 
p

er
 o

u
r 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
in

 a
re

as
 w

h
er

e 
w

e 
h

av
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

 r
is

k 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

•
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
gy

 (
IT

) 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 
 

O
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u
d

it
 i
s 

o
n

 g
o

in
g 

at
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
w

ri
ti

n
g 

an
d
 t

h
is

 is
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

.  
W

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

an
 u

p
d
at

e 
to

 t
h

e 
n

ex
t 

A
u
d

it
 b

o
ar

d
, w

h
en

 o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 w
o

rk
 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
. 

 

W
o

rk
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
/ 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
's

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 
W

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
, 
w

e
 c

a
n

 g
a

in
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

b
y
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
l A

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
th

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il.

 

 

W
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
e

s
ti

n
g

 
W

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

s
s
e

rt
io

n
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

to
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 -

 

• 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t/

C
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 -

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

• 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 -

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e

s
s
 

• 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 &

 t
ra

d
e

 c
re

d
it
o

rs
/a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 –
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
. 

N
o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 n
o

te
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
te

rn
a

l c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

w
e

re
 o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 

o
u

r 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
. 

 

Page 58



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
in

te
ri

m
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 (
co

n
ti

n
u
ed

) 

  

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
/ 
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
/ 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

(I
T

) 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 I
T

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

W
e
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l.
  
S

h
o

u
ld

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 t
h

a
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

A
u

d
it
 

B
o

a
rd

. 

J
o

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

  
o

f 
o

u
r 

o
n

-g
o

in
g

 in
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it
 ,
 w

e
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

jo
u

rn
a

l 
e

n
tr

y
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
. 
 W

e
  
a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
ir

s
t 
n

in
e

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
r,

 b
y
 e

x
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 'u

n
u

s
u

a
l' 

it
e

m
s
 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

  
W

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

A
u

d
it
 B

o
a

rd
  
if
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

a
t 
re

v
ie

w
. 

  

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
e

s
ti

n
g

 
O

u
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t
e

s
ts

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
. 
 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 v
is

it
. 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti

n
g

 
W

e
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
. 
 

A
g

a
in

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
. 

 

Page 59



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

T
h

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
A

u
d
it

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
re

q
u
ir

es
 u

s 
to

 i
ss

u
e 

a 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
n

 w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
ec

o
n

o
m

y,
 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 it

s 
u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
. T

h
is

 is
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s 

th
e 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) 

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

.  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
  

O
u
r 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 w
ill

 b
e 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

w
o

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

cr
it

er
ia

 
sp

ec
if

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. 

W
e 

w
ill

 t
ai

lo
r 

o
u
r 

V
fM

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k 
ar

ea
s 

it
 i
s,

 w
h

er
ev

er
 p

o
ss

ib
le

, f
o

cu
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
as

 a
n

d
 c

an
 

b
e 

u
se

d
 a

s 
a 

so
u
rc

e 
o

f 
as

su
ra

n
ce

 m
em

b
er

s.
 W

h
er

e 
w

e 
p

la
n

 t
o

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 
sp

ec
if

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

V
fM

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

, w
e 

w
ill

 i
ss

u
e 

a 
T

er
m

s 
o

f 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

u
tl

in
in

g 
th

e 
sc

o
p

e,
 m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

gy
 a

n
d
 t

im
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

. T
h

es
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 i
n

 a
d

va
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

 A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e.
 

T
h

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
al

l 
o

u
r 

lo
ca

l 
V

fM
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 k

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 

in
 o

u
r 

A
u
d
it

 F
in

d
in

gs
 r

ep
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
A

n
n

u
al

 A
u
d

it
 L

et
te

r.
 W

e 
w

ill
 a

gr
ee

 
an

y 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
o

n
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

-b
y-

re
vi

ew
 b

as
is

. 

 

C
o
d
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 
W

o
rk

 t
o

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 

 R
is

k-
b

as
ed

 w
o

rk
 f

o
cu

si
n

g 
o

n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 f
in

an
ci

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
, s

tr
at

eg
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
an

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l. 

 

S
p

ec
if

ic
al

ly
 w

e 
w

ill
: 

 •
R

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 m
ed

iu
m

 t
o

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
 t

o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
av

in
gs

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 t

o
 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

  

•
R

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 p
la

n
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 b
o

th
 t

h
e 

S
h

ar
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ge

n
d

a 
an

d
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
  
th

e 
im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 t

h
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 
te

rm
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
 

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e 
in

-y
ea

r 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

n
st

 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

ar
ge

ts
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
ge

r 
te

rm
 p

la
n

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
re

cu
rr

en
t 

sa
vi

n
gs

. 

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
ls

 i
n

-y
ea

r 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

an
d

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
it

s 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 t
ar

ge
ts

 
to

 t
h

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
 

 

   

 

 

W
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 i
ts

 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
ig

h
te

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

T
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
  

p
ro

p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

  
in

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r:

 
•

s
e

c
u
ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e

  
 

•
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 

s
e

c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 in

 i
ts

 
u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

Page 60



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 c

y
c

le
 

L
o

gi
st

ic
s 

an
d

 o
u
r 

te
am

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/ 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

  
D

e
b

ri
e
f 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

 

v
is

it
 

F
in

a
l 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
  

v
is

it
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 
J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

K
e

y
 p

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 

2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
3
 

D
a

te
 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

-

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
2

 

In
te

ri
m

 s
it
e

 w
o

rk
  

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
3

 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 

A
u

d
it
 B

o
a

rd
 –

 t
o

 b
e

 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
3

 

A
u

d
it
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

re
s
e

n
t 

th
e

 I
S

A
 2

6
0

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
3

 

S
ig

n
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 V

fM
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

T
B

C
 

 

Is
s
u

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

O
u

r 
te

a
m

 

P
h

il
 J

o
n

e
s

 

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

L
e

a
d

 

T
 0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
2

3
2

 

E
 p

h
il.

w
.j
o

n
e

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m
  

A
z
iz

u
l 
Is

la
m

 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 

T
 0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
4

1
6

 

A
z
iz

u
l.
is

la
m

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o
m

  

Z
o

e
 T

h
o

m
a

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

T
 0

1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
2

7
7

 

E
 z

o
e

.t
h

o
m

a
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m
 

N
e

g
a

t 
S

u
lt

a
n

 

IT
 s

p
e

c
ia

li
s

t 

T
 0

1
1

6
 2

5
7

 5
5

9
0

 

E
 n

e
g

a
t.

s
u

lt
a
n

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o

m
 

Page 61



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

F
e

e
s
 

£ 

C
ou

nc
il 

au
di

t 
64

,0
06

 

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

13
,3

00
 

T
o

ta
l 

77
,3

06
 

F
ee

s 
an

d
 i
n

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 

O
u

r 
fe

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

�
O

u
r 

fe
es

 a
re

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 o

f 
V

A
T

  

�
S
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
sc

h
ed

u
le

s 
to

 a
ll 

fi
gu

re
s 

in
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 

ar
e 

su
p

p
lie

d
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 d
at

es
 a

n
d

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ag
re

ed
 u

p
o

n
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 r

eq
u
es

t 
lis

t 

�
T

h
e 

sc
o

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
, a

n
d

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
an

d
 i
ts

 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 h

av
e 

n
o

t 
ch

an
ge

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 

�
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
st

af
f 

to
 h

el
p

 u
s 

lo
ca

te
 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
s 

In
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 e

th
ic

s
 

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

fa
ct

s 
o

r 
m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

s 
au

d
it

o
rs

 t
h

at
 w

e 
ar

e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 o

r 
w

is
h

 t
o

 d
ra

w
 t

o
 y

o
u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

. 
W

e 
h

av
e 

co
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
in

g 
P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
o

ar
d

's
 E

th
ic

al
 

S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

an
d
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
 w

e 
co

n
fi

rm
 t

h
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

in
d
ep

en
d

en
t 

an
d

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 e

xp
re

ss
 a

n
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e 
o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

F
u
ll 

d
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

al
l 
fe

es
 c

h
ar

ge
d
 f

o
r 

au
d
it

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-a
u
d

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 i
n

 o
u
r 

A
u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
gs

 r
ep

o
rt

 a
t 

th
e 

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
. 

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 w

e 
h

av
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
in

g 
P

ra
ct

ic
es

 

B
o

ar
d
's

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d
s.

 

  F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

F
e

e
s

 £
 

N
o
n

e
  

N
il 

Page 62



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

au
d
it

 m
at

te
rs

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d
 w

it
h

 g
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

O
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

A
u

d
it

 

p
la

n
 

A
u

d
it

 

fi
n

d
in

g
s

 

R
e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 

w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

ü
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 

ü
 

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

ü
 

C
o
n

fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

  
re

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 

b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
. 
 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
. 
  

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 

ü
  

ü
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

ü
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

ü
 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 

ü
 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 m

o
d

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
o

r 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
f 
m

a
tt

e
r 

ü
 

U
n
c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

ü
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 

ü
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 

ü
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
  

(I
S

A
) 

2
6

0
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
  

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t,

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

, 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

w
h

ile
 T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  
a

n
d

 

w
ill

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

b
a

s
is

, 
e

it
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

lly
 o

r 
v
ia

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

  

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 
 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
'th

e
 

C
o

d
e

')
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 
 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 
 

Page 63



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 
 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

  

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k 

Page 64



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 

AUDIT BOARD   14TH MARCH 2013 

     
 

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT UPDATE  
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth  

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Jayne Pickering ( Exec Director)  

Wards Affected  All 

Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To present to members the Grant Thornton update in relation to work 

undertaken at Bromsgrove District Council. 
  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Members are asked to note and report 
 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 The fee associated with the External Audit Opinion and audit of 

accounting statements and consideration of the Councils arrangements 
for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency is £77k. This 
reflects a 30% reduction from 2011/12 Audit fee. 

 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Council has a statutory responsibility to formally prepare accounts 
in compliance with national guidelines and ensure these are audited by 
an audited body. 

 
 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 Attached at Appendix A is the Grant Thornton Audit Update. This 

details work undertaken to date by the External Audit team and 
highlights any issues that need to be considered by the Audit Board.  
There have been no concerns raised by Grant Thornton in the aspects 
of work to date. 

 
3.4 In addition to the progress report the Appendix includes a number of 

key questions that have been raised as a result of emerging issues 
both financial and operational that may impact on the Council. It is 

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
AUDIT BOARD   14TH MARCH 2013 

     
 

proposed that these questions are responded to by the Executive 
Director Finance and Resources as part of the agenda item.  

 
3.5 The work by the Grant Thornton will enable a robust opinion to be 

made across all the internal control and accounting arrangements that 
the Council has in place.  

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.6 None as a direct result of this report 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 The Financial Services risk register includes the preparation of the 

accounts and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated 
in compliance with accounting standards. Risk management 
arrangements in place across the organisation ensure that risks are 
addressed and mitigated. 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
  Appendix 1 – Audit Update on Progress March 2013 
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400  

Page 66



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 

A
u
d

it
 B

o
ar

d
 U

p
d

at
e 

fo
r 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
1
3
 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
  

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 

P
h

il
 J

o
n

e
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

le
a
d

 

T
 

0
1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

2
3
2

 

E
  

p
h
il.

w
.j
o

n
e
s
 @

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

Z
o

e
 T

h
o

m
a
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
 

0
1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

2
7
7

 

E
  

z
o
e
.t

h
o
m

a
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

A
z
iz

u
l 

Is
la

m
 

e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

T
 

0
1
2
1
 2

3
2
 5

4
1
6

 

E
  

a
z
iz

u
l.
is

la
m

@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

 

Page 67



T
h

e 
co

n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 r
el

at
e 

o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

b
el

ie
v
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

au
d

it
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
a 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
al

l 
th

e 
re

le
v
an

t 
m

at
te

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
an

ge
, 
an

d
 i
n

 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

w
e 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e 
h

el
d

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

al
l 
o

f 
th

e 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t 

yo
u
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
o

r 
an

y 
w

ea
k
n

es
se

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 

so
le

ly
 f

o
r 

yo
u
r 

b
en

ef
it

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e 
q
u
o

te
d

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

o
u
r 

p
ri

o
r 

w
ri

tt
en

 

co
n

se
n

t.
 W

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

ac
ce

p
t 

an
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
n

ed
 t

o
 a

n
y 

th
ir

d
 p

ar
ty

 a
ct

in
g,

 

o
r 

re
fr

ai
n

in
g 

fr
o

m
 a

ct
in

g 
o

n
 t

h
e 

b
as

is
 o

f 
th

e 
co

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

, 
as

 t
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 w

as
 n

o
t 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r,

 n
o

r 
in

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r,
 a

n
y 

o
th

er
 p

u
rp

o
se

. 

. 

Page 68



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
3 3 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 
P

a
g

e
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

4
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

t 
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

 
5
 

E
m

e
rg

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 
 

  
 A

c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

7
 

  
 G

ra
n
t 
T

h
o
rn

to
n
 

9
  

  
 L

o
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
1
0
 

  
 

Page 69



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
4 4 

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 

 T
h

is
 p

a
p

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 B

o
a
rd

 w
it
h

 a
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 in

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 o
u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

s
 y

o
u
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
p

e
r 

a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
: 

•
a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
to

 y
o

u
 a

s
 a

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

•
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 in

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 is
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

a
y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r.

 

  M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 B

o
a
rd

 c
a
n
 f
in

d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
s
e
fu

l 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
o
n
 o

u
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 w

w
w

.g
ra

n
t-

th
o
rn

to
n
.c

o
.u

k
, 
w

h
e
re

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 t
o
 

o
u
r 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r.
 H

e
re

 y
o

u
 c

a
n
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

 c
o

p
ie

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
. 

 If
 y

o
u
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

n
y
 i
te

m
s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 b

ri
e
fi
n

g
, 
o

r 
w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

it
h

 G
ra

n
t 
T

h
o
rn

to
n

 t
o

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
e

m
a

il 
u

p
d

a
te

s
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 y
o

u
, 
p

le
a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
e

it
h

e
r 

y
o

u
r 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
L

e
a

d
 o

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r.
 

 P
h

il 
J
o

n
e

s
  
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a

d
  
T

 0
1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
2
3

2
 p

h
il.

w
.j
o

n
e

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m
 

Z
o
e

 T
h

o
m

a
s
 A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
T

 0
1
2

1
 2

3
2

 5
2
7

7
  
z
o

e
.t

h
o
m

a
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m
 

 

Page 70



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
5 5 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

t 
1
 M

ar
ch

 2
0
1
3
 

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 d
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
?

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

W
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
u
d

it
 

p
la

n
 t

o
 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 g

iv
e

 a
n

 o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
 

Y
E

S
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 M

a
rc

h
 A

u
d
it
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 A

s
 t
h

e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

h
a
s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

, 
th

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 s

h
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 

C
a
b
in

e
t.

  
 

In
te

ri
m

 a
c
c

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

  

O
u

r 
in

te
ri
m

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 v
is

it
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

: 

•
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

•
u

p
d

a
te

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 o
f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

•
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 o

n
 c

o
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

•
e

a
rl
y
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

•
e

a
rl
y
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 

•
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

 

 

F
e
b

ru
a

ry
/ 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
 

N
O

 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

u
p
d

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 
A

u
d
it
 B

o
a
rd

. 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 f

in
a
l 
a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

•
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 

•
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 V
a

lu
e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

3
 

N
O

 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 f
in

a
l 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 v
is

it
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

3
. 
 T

h
e
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 t
h

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

ill
 

b
e
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r.

  
W

e
 w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

A
u

d
it
 B

o
a
rd

. 

Page 71



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
6 6 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

t 
2
8
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

2
0
1
3
. 

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 d
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
?

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 (

V
fM

) 
c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

T
h

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 V

F
M

 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e

s
: 

•
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 in

 
p

la
c
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o

 l
o

n
g

 
te

rm
. 

•
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 p

la
n
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
o
th

 
th

e
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
g

e
n
d

a
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
it
h

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 
th

is
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
. 

•
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 

•
M

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
ils

 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 
a

c
h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
it
s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

  

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
  

T
h

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 in

 M
a

rc
h

 

b
u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 

k
n

o
w

n
. 
  

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

  

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 D
W

P
. 
 

M
a

rc
h

 –
m

e
e
t 
w

it
h

 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

J
u

n
e

 –
 e

a
rl
y
 

m
o

d
u

le
s
 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
–
 c

lie
n
t 

te
s
ti
n
g

 e
a
rl
y
 

m
o
d
u
le

s
  

T
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 i
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
p

ie
c
e
 o

f 

w
o

rk
. 
 I

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 
th

e
 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 o
n
 o

u
r 

b
e
h

a
lf
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

th
e
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

. 
  
W

e
 w

ill
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
. 

 

Page 72



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
7 7 

E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

 i
s

s
u

e
s
 

Im
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
F

in
a

n
c

e
 A

c
t 

2
0
1

2
 

T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 A

c
t 
2

0
1

2
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 R

o
y
a

l 
A

s
s
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 A

c
t 
h

a
s
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 in
 t

w
o

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

fi
n

a
n

c
e
: 
 

• 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 n
o
w

 b
e
 l
o

c
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 
 

• 
5

0
%

 o
f 
th

e
 n

o
n

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 l
o

c
a
lly

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
B

ill
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 p

a
y
 o

v
e

r 
a

 s
h

a
re

 t
o

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 s

h
a
re

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 p

re
c
e

p
ti
n
g

 b
o
d

ie
s
. 

 In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 
C

IP
F

A
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 C

o
d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 

in
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
. 
 I

n
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 t
o

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 
fo

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

s
 in

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
w

a
y
 t

o
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

ta
x
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 c
o

lle
c
ti
b

le
 b

y
 

e
a
c
h

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
D

e
b
to

rs
/c

re
d
it
o

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 w

h
e
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

a
tc

h
 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 p

a
id

 b
y
 e

a
c
h

 b
ill

in
g

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

o
v
e

r 
to

 p
re

c
e

p
to

rs
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 F
u
n

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 
a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e

s
. 
T

o
p
-u

p
s
 a

n
d

 

ta
ri
ff

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 n

e
t 
a

n
d

 l
e

v
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 a

s
 g

ra
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 o

r 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
. 

In
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 a
 p

o
o

l 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 s

h
a
re

 o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 d

e
b

to
rs

/c
re

d
it
o

rs
 a

s
 s

ti
p

u
la

te
d

 i
n

 a
n
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
m

a
d
e

 b
y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

l.
  

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
: 

•
D

o
 y

o
u
 k

n
o
w

 y
o

u
r 

k
e

y
 r

is
k
s
?

 

•
H

a
v
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 e

n
s
u

re
d

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
is

 f
e

d
 in

to
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
s
?

 

•
H

a
v
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 m

o
d
e

lli
n

g
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 g

ro
w

th
?

 

•
H

a
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 g
iv

e
n
 d

u
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

o
o
lin

g
?

 

•
H

a
v
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 r
a

te
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 d

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
e

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

re
d
u

c
ti
o
n

?
 

•
H

a
s
 y

o
u
r 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 C

o
d
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
t?

 

Page 73



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
8 8 

E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

 i
s

s
u

e
s
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s
  

U
n

d
e

r 
IA

S
 3

7
 'P

ro
v
is

io
n
s
, 

C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 
L

ia
b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 
A

s
s
e

ts
',
 t
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o

r 
re

c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 a
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 is
: 
 

•
a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
a

 p
a
s
t 
e

v
e

n
t;

 

•
a

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
is

 p
ro

b
a

b
le

; 
a

n
d

 

•
a

 r
e

lia
b
le

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

. 

 W
e

 w
is

h
 t

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 t
o

 y
o

u
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 w
h

e
re

 a
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
: 

 •
M

u
tu

a
l 
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

 –
 t
h

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 t

ri
g

g
e

re
d
 in

 N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 it
 i
s
 n

o
w

 v
ir
tu

a
lly

 c
e

rt
a

in
 t
h

a
t 

th
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi
t.

 I
f 
th

is
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
d
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
, 
w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

to
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 a

 c
re

d
it
o

r 
o

r,
 if

 t
h

e
 t
im

in
g

 o
r 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
is

 u
n
c
e

rt
a

in
, 
a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

 •
L

a
n

d
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n

 c
o

s
ts

 –
 w

h
e
re

 a
 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
w

n
s
 a

 c
lo

s
e
d

 l
a
n

d
fi
ll 

s
it
e

 a
n
d

 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ft

e
rc

a
re

 c
o

s
ts

, 
w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 
th

e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 r
e

c
o
g

n
is

e
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

to
ta

l 
fu

tu
re

 c
o

s
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll 

a
ft

e
rc

a
re

 c
o

s
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
a

p
it
a

lis
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
re

c
ia

te
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

IA
S

 1
6
 'P

ro
p
e

rt
y
, 
P

la
n
t 
a

n
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t'
 s

o
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 G

e
n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
. 

 •
E

q
u

a
l 
p

a
y
 -

  
in

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
re

m
e

 c
o

u
rt

 r
u

le
d
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
7
0

 f
o

rm
e

r 
B

ir
m

in
g

h
a
m

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 c

a
n
 m

a
k
e

 e
q

u
a
l 

p
a
y
 c

la
im

s
. 
T

h
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 e
x
te

n
d
s
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g

 e
q

u
a
l 
p
a
y
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 c

la
im

s
 f

ro
m

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 t
o
 s

ix
 y

e
a
rs

. 
W

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 
lo

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
y
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 I
A

S
 3

7
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 

m
e

t,
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

 •
R

e
d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 –
th

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
te

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 f
a

ll 
u

n
d

e
r 

IA
S

 1
9
 '
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

'.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 g

e
n
e

ra
lly

 e
a
rl
ie

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
e

 

IA
S

 3
7
 r

e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o

r 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

 v
a

lid
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

o
s
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 

IA
S

 1
9
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

 i
s
 'd

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
b
ly

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
'.
 

 

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
: 

•
H

a
s
 y

o
u
r 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

b
o

v
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
?

 

Page 74



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
9 9 

E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 

'T
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

 t
ip

p
in

g
 p

o
in

t?
: 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
in

d
in

g
s

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

s
e
c

o
n

d
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k

s
 o

f 
E

n
g

li
s

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 '
  

In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 
G

ra
n
t 
T

h
o
rn

to
n

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 '
T

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 t
ip

p
in

g
 p

o
in

t?
: 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

s
e

c
o
n

d
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

c
h

e
c
k
s
 o

f 
E

n
g

lis
h

 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
'.
  
T

h
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
id

e
rs

 k
e

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g

 a
n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 u
p
d

a
te

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 c
o

p
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
e
d

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 
tr

e
n
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
: 

•
H

a
v
e

 y
o

u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
?

 

•
A

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
re

la
te

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n

 a
re

 y
o

u
 g

o
in

g
 t
o

 t
a

k
e

?
 

 

'L
G

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 2

0
1

3
: 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

; 
a

 s
lo

w
 b

u
rn

e
r'

  

T
h

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 is

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 d
e
s
k
to

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 (
A

G
S

) 
a

n
d
 

e
x
p

la
n
a

to
ry

 f
o

rw
a

rd
s
 o

f 
1

5
3

 c
o

u
n

ty
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

, 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 m

e
tr

o
p
o

lit
a

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

 a
n
d

 u
n
it
a

ry
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

s
 

c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d
 b

y
 a

 s
u

rv
e

y
 o

f 
6

3
 'c

o
u
n

c
il 

le
a
d

e
rs

'.
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 is

 a
 u

s
e
fu

l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
h

e
n

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 it

s
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 A

G
S

 a
n
d

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 

  . 

Page 75



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
10

 
10

 

E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

L
o

c
a
l 

g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

'A
u

d
it

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
' 
re

p
o

rt
 

In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,

 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 '
A

u
d
it
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
'.
 T

h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
' w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
b

o
th

 p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

b
o
d

ie
s
. 
 T

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 is

 t
h

a
t 
b

o
d

ie
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 in

 2
0

1
1
/1

2
. 

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
: 

•
H

a
s
 y

o
u
r 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 p
re

p
a

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

?
 

•
H

a
s
 y

o
u
r 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
  

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

 a
 r

o
b
u

s
t 
a

n
d

 a
d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

d
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
it
s
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

?
  

•
H

a
s
 t

h
is

 b
e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d
it
o

rs
?

  

 'S
tr

ik
in

g
 a

 b
a

la
n

c
e
: 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c

il
s

' 
d

e
c

is
io

n
 m

a
k

in
g

 o
n

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 

In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,

 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 '
S

tr
ik

in
g

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

: 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
u
n

c
ils

' 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
.'
  
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 c

o
v
e

rs
 

th
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
a

rc
h

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 h
o
ld

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 

m
a

k
e

 o
n
 t
h

e
m

. 
 

 T
h

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

s
 E

n
g

lis
h

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 t
o

 f
o

c
u
s
 m

o
re

 a
tt

e
n
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
. 
It

 s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 m
o

re
 

c
o

m
p

re
h
e

n
s
iv

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t
o

 e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 o
n
 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
h

o
ld

in
g

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 in
c
lu

d
e
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 in
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

o
le

s
. 

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
: 

•
A

re
 y

o
u
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 y
o

u
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
?
  

•
H

a
v
e

 y
o

u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

h
e
re

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
?

  

 

Page 76



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

  R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
  

|  
 D

at
e

 
11

 
11

 

E
m

er
gi

n
g 

is
su

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

L
o

c
a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

'T
o

u
g

h
 T

im
e

s
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

s
' 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 t

im
e

s
' 
  

In
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r,

 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 '
T

o
u
g

h
 t
im

e
s
 2

0
1

2
: 
C

o
u
n

c
ils

' 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
im

e
s
.'
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 

re
p
o

rt
 it

 h
a
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
h

o
w

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
re

 d
e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

p
e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u
s
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

o
f 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 f
in

d
s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
tr

e
s
s
 w

e
re

 

v
is

ib
le

. 
 

T
 

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
: 

•
H

a
v
e

 y
o

u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
n
y
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
?

 

 

Page 77



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 
 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

  

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k 

Page 78



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD  14th  March 2013  

 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR INCLUSION WITHIN 2012/13 FINAL 
ACCOUNTS 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Roger Hollingworth  

Portfolio Holder Consulted  No  

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   

Wards Affected  All 

Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To approve the proposed Accounting Standards in preparation for the 

2012/13 Accounts.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That the Audit Board approve the Accounting Policies, detailed at  
 Appendix 1.   
 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The Council has a statutory requirement to produce a Statement of 

Accounts each financial year (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011).  The 
Statement of Accounts presents the overall financial position of Bromsgrove 
District Council for the year ended 31 March 2013.  The format of the 
Accounts is stipulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

 
3.2 The Accounting Policies form part of the required Statement of Accounts, 

and are defined as the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and 
practices applied by an entity in preparing and presenting the financial  

  
 Legal Implications 
 
3.3 The Council has a statutory requirement to produce a Statement of 

Accounts each financial year (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011). 
 
3.4 Approval of the Accounting Policies on which the bases of the Accounts are 

prepared is required. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD  14th  March 2013  

 

 

 Service/Operational Issues 

3.5 None as a direct result of this report. 

 Customer/ Equalities and Diversity  

3.6 None as a direct result of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 None. 
  
5. APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1 – Accounting Policies 
 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 

Name:  Sam Morgan – Accountancy Services Manager 

Email:  s.morgan@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

Tel:   (01527) 587088 

 
 
 
 

Page 80



Appendix 1 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
This section provides a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
estimation techniques used in the preparation of Bromsgrove District Council’s 
accounts. 
 
1. General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 
2012/13 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2013. The 
Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2011 which require the accounts to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2012/13 and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2012/13, 
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments.  
 
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received.  In particular: 
 

• Fees for the provision of goods and services due from customers are 
accounted for as income at the date the Council provides the relevant 
goods or services.   

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided on 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is 
accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 
recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not be settled, the 

Page 81



balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected. 

 
Accruals will be made for items of income and expenditure in excess of £500, 
lower amounts will only be actioned at the request of the relevant budget holder. 
 
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. 
 
Cash equivalents are investments that are short-term highly liquid investments 
held at the Balance Sheet date that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash on the Balance Sheet date and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Council’s cash management. 
 
4. Exceptional Items 
 
Exceptional items are ones that are material in terms of the Council’s overall 
expenditure and are not expected to recur frequently or regularly. Exceptional 
items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate (or on the face of 
the Income and Expenditure Account if that degree of prominence is necessary 
in order to give a fair presentation of the accounts). A full explanation of each 
exceptional item is given in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements. 
 
5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 
Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of change in accounting policies or 
to correct a material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, ie in current and future years affected by the change.  Changes in 
accounting estimates do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or if the change provides more reliable or relevant 
information about the Council’s financial position or performance.  Changes are 
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances 
with an additional balance sheet presented at the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Page 82



6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where 
there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which 
losses can be written off 

• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses or amortisations.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in 
the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
 
7. Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave 
and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an expense for 
services in the year. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlement, 
flexitime and time off in lieu not taken by employees before the year-end. The 
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then 
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday 
entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the absence 
occurs.  These are measured at the undiscounted amount that the Council 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the 
Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date 
or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an 
accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the 
termination or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. 
 

Page 83



In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from 
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid 
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme, administered by Worcestershire County Council. 
 
The Scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sum and 
pensions), earned as employees working for the Council. 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:- 

• The liabilities of the Worcestershire County Council pension fund 
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an 
actuarial basis using projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected earnings for 
current employees. 

 

• The assets of Worcestershire County Council pension fund attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. 

 

• The change in the net pensions liabilities is analysed in seven 
components:- 
 
i) Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 
 
ii) Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year 
decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs. 
 
iii) Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
iv) Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund 
assets attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected 

Page 84



long-term return – credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
v) Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to 
relieve the Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future 
service or accrual of benefits or employees – debited or credited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 
 
vi) Actuarial gains and losses -  changes in the net pensions liability that 
arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the 
last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their 
assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. 
 
vii) Contributions paid to the Worcestershire County Council pension fund 
– cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement 
of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension 
fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, this 
means there are appropriations to and from the Pension reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits 
for cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but 
unpaid at the year end. 
 
An independent actuary, based on triennial valuations, determines the 
employers’ contributions. The review carried out as at 31 March 2010 was 
implemented with effect from 1 April 2011 and may revise the contribution rates 
payable by the Council in future years. 
 
There is no impact on the revenue account of the authority as a result of the 
application of IAS19 requirements as the effects are statutorily removed in the 
Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance when calculating amounts 
chargeable to Council Tax payers. The resulting pension costs charged to the 
Council’s accounts in respect of its employees are equal to the contributions paid 
to the funded pension scheme for these employees. Further costs arise in 
respect of certain pensions paid to retired employees on an unfunded basis. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



Further information can be found in Worcestershire County Council’s 
Superannuation Fund Annual Report, available on request from: 
 
Mr. P Birch CPFA 
Director of Resources 
Worcestershire County Council 
County Hall, Spetchley Road, 
Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
8.  Events After the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorized for issue.  Two types of events 
can be identified: 
 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events. 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period 
– the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but 
where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is 
made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial 
effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in 
the Statement of Accounts. 
 
9. Financial Instruments Review 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the 
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
De-recognition 
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from 
the assets have expired or the trust has transferred substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. 
 
 
 

Page 86



Classification and measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets and liabilities other 
than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified into 
the following categories upon initial recognition: 

• loans and receivables; 

• financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure; 

• held to maturity investments; and 

• available-for-sale financial assets. 

• Other financial liabilities 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. They are 
included in current assets. 
The Council’s loans and receivables comprise: Fixed deposits, principally 
comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions, cash and cash 
equivalents, trade receivables, accrued income, ‘other debtors’, borrowings and 
trade payables. 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs, and are 
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
less provision for impairment. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and 
expenditure’ are financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading. A financial 
asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the short term. 
 
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated 
as hedges. 
Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-
related’ to those contracts are separated out from those contracts and measured 
in this category. Assets and liabilities in this category are classified as current 
assets and current liabilities. 
 
The Council’s financial assets and liabilites at fair value through income and 
expenditure comprise: Investments managed as a single portfolio by an 
appointed fund manager 
 
These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, 
with transaction costs expensed in the income and expenditure account. 
Subsequent movements in the fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. 
 

Page 87



Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity other than loans and receivables. 
Investments are classified as held-to-maturity if the Group has the intention and 
ability to hold them until maturity. The Council currently no assets designated into 
this category. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are 
either designated to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the 
other categories of financial assets. The Council currently no assets designated 
into this category. 
Other financial liabilities 
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs incurred, and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 
 
The Council’s other financial liabilities comprise: borrowings and trade payables 
are classified as amortised cost. The comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement is charged with interest receivable/payable, impairment losses and any 
gain or loss on disposal/maturity.  
 
10. Grants and Contributions 
 
Grants and contributions are recognised when there is reasonable assurance 
that the council will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants or 
contributions will be received. Grants and contributions are accounted for on an 
accruals basis and are recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as income, except to the extent that the grant or 
contribution has a condition that the council has not satisfied.  
 
Revenue Grants and contributions are accounted for as follows:- 
 

• Revenue grants received with no conditions outstanding are credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account. As the expenditure 
to be financed by that grant has not been incurred the grant or contribution 
is transferred to Earmarked Reserves reflecting it’s status as a revenue 
resource available to finance expenditure. 

• Revenue grants and contributions received where conditions remain 
outstanding are recognised as part of the Revenue Grants Receipts in 
Advance on the balance sheet. Once the condition is met, the grant or 
contribution will be treated as a revenue grant received with no conditions 
as above. 

 
 
 

Page 88



Capital grants and contributions are accounted for as follows:- 
 

• Capital grants and contributions received where expenditure has been 
incurred, where there are no conditions outstanding, are accounted for on 
an accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Capital grants and contributions received where expenditure has not yet 
been incurred, where there are no conditions outstanding, are accounted 
for on an accruals basis and recognised immediately in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. As the expenditure to 
be financed by that grant has not been incurred the grant or contribution is 
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve reflecting it’s status as a 
capital resource available to finance expenditure. 

• Capital grants and contributions received where conditions remain 
outstanding are recognised as part of the Capital Grants Receipts in 
Advance on the balance sheet. Once the condition is met, the grant or 
contribution will be treated as a capital grant received with no conditions 
as above. 

• Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve.  Where it has been applied, it is posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in Capital Grants Unapplied 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 
11. Heritage Assets 
 
The Council has undertaken a full review of all service areas to identify any 
collections of Heritage Assets which are held in support of the primary objective 
of the service provision.  The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed 
where there is evidence of impairment for heritage assets, eg where an item has 
suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity.  Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the 
Authority’s general policies on impairment   Sale proceeds are accounted for in 
accordance with the Council’s general provisions relating to the disposal of 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
12. Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible Assets represent expenditure that has been properly capitalised but 
which does not create a tangible asset for the Council. Intangible assets include 
acquired and internally developed software used in the services provided or 
administration that qualify for recognition as an intangible asset. They are 
accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised over 

Page 89



a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as these assets are 
considered finite. Residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed at 
each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing as 
described in note **** . There is a corresponding transfer from the Capital 
Adjustment Account to neutralise the effect of the amortisation charges on the 
General Fund Balance.  The useful life applied to this classification of assets is 3 
– 7 years. 
 
Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to 
acquire and install the specific software. 
 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software, ie expenditure relating to 
patches and other minor updates as well as their installation are expensed as 
incurred. 
 
Expenditure on research (or the research stage of an internal project) is 
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 
 
Costs that are attributable to the development phase of new customised software 
for IT and telecommunication systems are recognised as intangible assets 
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:- 
 

• Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be 
available for use or sale; 

• the council intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it; 

• the council has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; 

• the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits. 
Among other things, this requires that there is a market for the output from 
the intangible asset or for the intangible asset itself, or, it is to be used 
internally, 

• the asset will be used in generating such benefits; 

• there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete 
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and 

• the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development 
can be measured reliably. 

 
Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalisation are expensed as 
incurred. 
 
Directly attributable costs include employee (other than directors) costs incurred 
on software development along with an appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads. Internally generated software developments recognised as intangible 
assets are subject to the same subsequent measurement method as externally 
acquired software licences. However, until completion of the development 
project, the assets are subject to impairment testing only as described below in 
note ***** 

Page 90



13. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.  The cost of inventories is assigned using:- 

• The lower of cost and net realisable value, except where inventories are 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction in which case their cost is 
deemed to be fair value as at the date of acquisition or; 

• The lower of costs and current replacement cost where they are held for 
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge, or the consumption in 
the production process of goods top be distributed at no charge or for a 
nominal charge.  

 
The council’s inventories comprise items for Central Depot Stores, Vending 
Machine Stock, Pest Control Stock and the Postal Franking Machine. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services received 
under the contract during the financial 
 
14. Investment Property 
 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or capital 
appreciation.  The definition is not met if the property is used in the delivery of 
services, the production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair 
value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm’s length.  Properties are not depreciated but are 
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end.  Gains and 
losses on revaluation are posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line.  The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposals.  Revaluation gains 
and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and are posted 
to the Capital Adjustment Account and, for sale proceeds greater than £10,000 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
Rentals received for investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. 
 
15. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets 
 
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in 
conjunction with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources 
of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity.  The Authority 
recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities that 
it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Page 91



Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from 
the activity of the operation. 
 
The Council is responsible for hosting Worcestershire Regulatory Services under 
a contractual arrangement which is defined as a Jointly Controlled Operation.  
Under this arrangement, each participant accounts separately for its own 
transactions arising within the agreement including the assets, liabilities, income 
expenditure and cash flows.  As host to the Regulatory Shared Service, the 
Council accounts for the expenditure incurred for Redditch Borough Council, 
Wyre Forest District Council, Worcester City Council, Wychavon District Council, 
Malvern Hills District Council and Worcestershire County Council, its partners in 
the arrangement.  However assets and liabilities of the pension scheme are the 
joint responsibility of the partnership.  These have been accounted for in the full 
accounts of the Council as host and the notes to the Pension Scheme give 
details of the amounts attributable to the partners as defined in the partnership 
agreement. 
 
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly 
controlled by the Authority and other venturers, with the assets being used to 
obtain benefits for the venturers.  The joint venture does not involve the 
establishment of a separate entity.  The Council accounts for only is share of the 
jointly controlled assets, the liabilities and expenses that it incurs on its own 
behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in the joint venture and 
income that it earns from the venture. 
 
16. Shared Services  
 
Bromsgrove District Council provides the hosting for a number of shared service 
arrangements with Redditch Borough Council and Wyre Forest District Council.  
Bromsgrove also hosts Worcestershire Regulatory Services which is a Jointly 
Controlled Operation. Other Shared Services are also hosted by Worcester City 
Council and Wyre Forest District Council. 
 
Each arrangement is accounted for within the records of Bromsgrove District 
Council with a monitoring report prepared for partner authorities on a monthly 
basis for consideration of the operational costs together with an annual statement 
of assets and liabilities extracted from the account of Bromsgrove District 
Council. There is a responsibility for each partner Council to account for their 
share of the arrangement within their statement of accounts. 
 
When entering into shared services with Redditch Borough Council, all capital 
assets that are purchased are financed by each authority separately and 
accounted for on their own balance sheet.  Any assets purchased prior to the 
start of the shared service are not included in the shared service; the costs 
associated with this remain on the accounts of the authority that purchased the 
asset only. 

Page 92



 
The Management team is shared across both authorities as well as other 
services. Cross charging occurs where a resource is used by the other authority 
where there is not a formal shared service in place. 
 
Each authority pays a fair share of services which are shared, in line with the 
Business Case; all direct expenditure is shared on this basis, with income staying 
with the home authority.  Where a cost is only in relation to one authority, this 
falls outside the Business Case and the authority that gains the benefit for this is 
fully charged.   
 
Where support services are fully recharged across direct services a review of 
these has been undertaken.  On doing this it has been established that currently 
no internal recharges are to be charged to/from Bromsgrove District Council with 
the exception of accommodation in one area.  The work has shown that as 
Services become shared each authority is already paying its full share of internal 
recharges within the splits of the live shared services. Services that were not 
shared during this period have been looked at by each authority and Bromsgrove 
District Council is already paying its share of all support services. 
 

 

Shared Services Host Council Basis of split 

ICT/Business Transformation Bromsgrove District  Redditch 50% Bromsgrove 50% 
Elections/Electoral 
Registration 

Bromsgrove District  Redditch 46.5% Bromsgrove 
53.3% 

Building Control Bromsgrove District Based on existing budget split 
Policy, Performance & 
Communications  

Bromsgrove District Redditch 50% Bromsgrove 50% 

Land Charges Bromsgrove District Redditch 40% Bromsgrove 60% 
Internal Audit Worcester City Agreed audit work 
Bromsgrove Community 
Safety 

Redditch Borough 100% Bromsgrove 

North Worcestershire 
Regeneration 

Wyre Forest District Service level agreement 

Payroll Redditch Borough Payroll numbers 
Climate Change Redditch Borough Redditch 50% Bromsgrove 50% 
Directorate Support Redditch Borough Agreed support work 
Management Team Joint Redditch & 

Bromsgrove 
Redditch 50% Bromsgrove 50% 
(Housing 100% Redditch) 

Land Drainage Wyre Forest District Based on existing budget split 
Legal & Committee Services Bromsgrove District Redditch 50% Bromsgrove 50% 
Leisure Services Redditch Borough Various dependent on facility 
CCTV/Lifeline Redditch Borough Redditch 60% Bromsgrove 40% 

 

 

Page 93



 
 
 
 
17. Leasing 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, 
plant and equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified 
as operating leases. 
 
 
 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at 
the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if 
lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the 
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the 
asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease 
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they 
are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 
equipment – applied to write down a lease liability, and 

• a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for 
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life 
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the 
lease period). 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as a cost to the services benefiting from the use of 

Page 94



the lease property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis 
over the life of the lease. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property, plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and the 
carrying amount is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or 
equipment – applied to write down the lease debtor 

• finance income (credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, or 
the write off of the value of disposals, is not to be adjusted against council tax. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 
General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over property, plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and expenditure 
Statement. 
 
18. Overheads and Support Services 
 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit 
from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA 
Best Value Accounting Practice 2010/11 (BVACOP).  The total absorption 
costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are 
shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception 
of: 
 

• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as 
a multi-functional, democratic organisation. 

 

Page 95



• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 
employees retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses on 
non-operational properties. 

 
These two cost categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as 
separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

19. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Recognition 
Property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset on the councils 
balance sheet if: 
 

• It is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the council,  

• The cost of the item can be measured reliably,  

• The item has a cost of at least £10,000; or 

• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £10,000, where the 
assets are functionally independent, they had broadly simultaneous 
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and 
are under single managerial control. 

 
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components 
with significantly different asset lives, e.g. plant and equipment, then these 
components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own 
useful economic lives. 
 
Measurement  
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, 
representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset 
and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
Following initial recognition assets shall be valued as follows:- 
 

• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction shall be 
measured at historical cost. 

• All other classes of assets are measured at fair value using a valuation 
method appropriate for the asset in accordance with IAS 16 and the 2010 
SORP. 

 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 
bases: 
 

Page 96



• Operational land and buildings, other than low cost housing and rent to 
mortgage properties (see below), are included at existing use value in 
accordance with the 2011 SORP. 

• Low cost housing and rent to mortgage properties are included at market 
value. 

• Infrastructure assets such as environmental improvements (eg 
footbridges, highways furniture and bus shelters) are included at 
depreciated historical cost. 

• Vehicles, Plant and Equipment, other than park equipment and play areas 
(see below), are included at fair value. The council has adopted a 
historical cost basis as a proxy for fair value as the assets have short 
useful lives or low values or both. 

• Specialised operational assets such as the skateboard park and 
equipment in play areas and parks where there is no established market 
value, have been valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. 

• Community assets, such as Parks and Recreation Grounds, are included 
at depreciated historical costs 

• Investment Properties, which are assets that are not directly used in the 
delivery of a service and are held for investment potential with any rental 
income being negotiated at arms length, such as Industrial Properties, are 
included at market value. 

• Assets under Construction are new capital works that will result in the 
creation of a new asset but will involve expenditure over several years are 
carried on the Balance Sheet at cost and classified as non-operational 
until they are finished and brought into operational use. 

 
A programme of valuations, to be carried out by the County Council’s Valuation 
Officer (under an SLA), is in place to ensure all appropriate fixed assets are 
revalued every 5 years. The County Council’s Valuation Officer has been asked 
to review the impact of the current economic climate on the Council’s fixed 
assets and has confirmed that there is no material impact on their value in the 
financial year.  
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged on all assets used in the provision of services. It 
represents the use of capital assets by that service. It is calculated on a straight 
line basis by writing off the cost or revalued amount for assets, less the residual 
value for each asset, over the useful life of each asset.  
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets with a 
determinable finite life (except for investment properties), by allocating the value 
of the assets in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected to benefit from their 
use.   
 
Depreciation is charged on the asset values at the beginning of the financial 
year. All assets have now been revalued within the last four years.  No 

Page 97



depreciation is charged on assets in the year of acquisition or enhancement. No 
charge is made for non operational assets. 
 
The useful life of assets is based on individual assets but generally is based on: 
 

 
Estimated 
useful life 

Other Land and Buildings 5-50 years 
Vehicles, Plant and 
Equipment  

2-15 years 

Infrastructure 5-20 years 

 
Disposals 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals are 
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Any revaluation gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.   
 
Amounts received in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for 
land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to 
the Government.  The balance of receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve, and can then only be used for new investment or set aside to reduce 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). 
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.   
As the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for 
capital financing, the written-off value of disposals is not a charge against 
Council Tax; amounts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the written off value of 
disposals. 
 
Componentisation 
Where an item of PPE has major components whose cost is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.  The 
Council has established a threshold of £1 million for determining whether an 
asset needs to be componentised and a component value of more than 20% of 
the total asset value to determine if part of an asset is considered as a 
component. 
 
Residual values 
Where assets are held past their estimated useful life their residual values are 
usually immaterial or below the £10,000 de minimus level for inclusion on the 
balance sheet. Where an asset has reached the end of its estimated life and is 

Page 98



still used, its value is reviewed to confirm that its value is immaterial.  This is 
done annually at the end of the accounting year. 
 
De minimus capital expenditure 
Purchases of assets or enhancement work with a value of £10,000 or lower are 
not recorded in the asset register.  De minimus assets financed from capital 
resources are written off to the service in the year that expenditure is incurred.  
Credits are made from the Capital Adjustment Account to ensure the written 
down assets do not have an impact on Council Tax. 
 
20. Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and 
equipment 
 
At each reporting period end, the Authority checks whether there is any indication 
that any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an 
impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss 
and, if so, its amount. 
 
If there has been an impairment loss, the asset is written down to its recoverable 
amount, with the loss charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there 
is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Where 
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the 
amount that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment 
loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent 
of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation 
reserve. 
 
21. Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale and 
discontinued operations 
 
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the 
following criteria are met: 
 

• The asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary for such 
sales, and 

• The sale is highly probable and sale should be expected to be completed 
with 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’, and 

• The asset  (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for a sale price 
that is reasonable in relation to its fair value. 

 
When these conditions have been met, the asset or disposal group is classified 
as ‘held for sale’ and presented separately in the statement of financial position.  
 

Page 99



Liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ and presented as such in the statement 
of financial position if they are directly associated with a disposal group. 
 
Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amounts immediately prior to their classification as ‘held for sale’ and their fair 
value less costs to sell. No assets classified as ‘held for sale’ are subject to 
depreciation or amortisation, subsequent to their classification as ‘held for sale’.  
 
22. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation.  For instance, the Council may be involved in a 
court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the 
payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council 
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried 
in the Balance Sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 
recovered from another party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only 
recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in the circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 

Page 100



Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council 
a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a 
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an outflow of 
economic benefits or service potential. 
 

23. Reserves 
 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or 
to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When 
expenditure to be financed from the reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council 
tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current 
assets, financial instruments, employee and retirement benefits and do not 
represent usable resources for the Council. 
 
24. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
 
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute represents expenditure 
that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the 
creation of tangible assets.  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute incurred during the year have been written off as expenditure to the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the Revenue expenditure 
funded from capital under statute from existing capital resources or by borrowing, 
a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged to the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
25.  VAT 
 

Page 101



VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not 
recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is 
excluded from income. 
 

26. Accounting for Council Tax 
 
As a billing authority, the Council acts as an agent, collecting and distributing 
Council Tax income on behalf of its major preceptors – Worcestershire County 
Council, West Mercia Police Authority, Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue 
Authority and itself. 
 
Council Tax income for the year is the Council’s accrued income for the year and 
not the amount required by legislation to be transferred from the Collection Fund. 
The difference between the amount included in the Income and Expenditure 
account and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund. 
 
The cash collected by the Council from Council Tax debtors belongs 
proportionately to the billing authority and major preceptors. This results in a 
debtor/creditor position between the Council and major preceptors for the 
difference between the cash collected from Council Tax debtors and the precept 
paid over during the year. The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of 
Council Tax arrears and associated impairment for bad debts, Council Tax 
overpayments and prepayments and the debtor/creditor position with the 
precepting bodies. 
 
27. Accounting for National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
 
The Council acts as an agent in the collection of National Non-Domestic Rates 
on behalf of Central Government. The cost of collection allowance is included as 
income within the Council’s Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
The Council does not include NNDR debtors in the Balance Sheet but instead 
shows a creditor or debtor for cash collected from NNDR debtors as agent of the 
Government but not paid to the Government or overpaid to the Government, at 
the Balance Sheet date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

a
b

le
 g

iv
e

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fr

a
u
d

 w
h

e
re

 s
a
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 

w
e

re
 a

p
p

lie
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o
d

 A
p

ri
l 
to

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 A
u

d
it
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 1

3
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

 G
e
n

d
e
r 

A
g

e
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

D
e
p

e
n

d
a
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 
T

e
n

a
n

c
y
 t

y
p

e
 

A
re

a
 

F
ra

u
d

 t
y
p

e
 

H
B

 
O

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t 
C

T
B

 
O

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t 
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
2
9
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

1
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
rf

o
rd

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
4
,8

9
2
.2

3
 

£
1
,4

5
2
.9

0
 

P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
5
2
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

0
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

H
o
lly

w
o

o
d
 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
1
,8

6
2
.7

7
 

£
4
6
0

.3
0
 

P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
5
1
 

S
in

g
le

 
3
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

R
u
b
e
ry

 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r/

c
o

n
tr

iv
e
d

 
te

n
a

n
c
y
  

£
3
9
,3

8
5
.5

0
 

£
5
,2

6
6
.3

9
 

P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
2
5
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

R
u
b
e
ry

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

£
2
,4

6
0
.0

0
 

£
5
7
8

.3
9
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
4
7
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

1
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

R
u
b
e
ry

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£

4
7
3

.6
2
 

£
8
1
.5

9
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
5
2
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

C
a
ts

h
ill

 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
(u

n
d

e
c
la

re
d
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
) 

£
2
1
4

.3
7
 

£
4
3
.3

1
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
4
4
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

F
in

s
ta

ll 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
8

1
6

.2
2
 

n
/a

  
C

a
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
4
1
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

C
T

B
 o

n
ly

 
T

a
rd

e
b
ig

g
e
 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
n
/a

 
£
1
,3

3
9
.1

6
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
5
2
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

0
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

S
id

e
m

o
o
r 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 n

o
n
-

d
e
p
e

n
d
a

n
t'
s
 w

o
rk

 
£
3
,5

5
4
.6

9
 

£
7
7
3

.5
8
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
1
9
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

S
id

e
m

o
o
r 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
5

4
4

.1
9
 

n
/a

 
C

a
u
ti
o
n
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
4
5
 

S
in

g
le

 
1
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
rf

o
rd

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

£
1
,5

7
5
.6

0
 

£
7
3
.9

3
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
4
6
 

S
in

g
le

 
1
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

H
o
lly

w
o

o
d
 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

a
g

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

£
2
,9

2
9
.0

4
 

£
1
,4

5
8
.9

1
 

C
a
u
ti
o
n
 

M
a
le

 
6
6
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

L
ic

k
e

y
 E

n
d
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
(u

n
d

e
c
la

re
d
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
) 

£
2
,8

5
0
.8

5
 

£
1
,8

3
0
.2

0
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
n

a
lt
y
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
2
1
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

0
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
rf

o
rd

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
2
7
0

.1
0

 
£
9
5
.4

1
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
n

a
lt
y
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
3
8
 

S
in

g
le

 
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

C
h
a
rf

o
rd

 
U

n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
1

,9
9
3
.1

6
 

n
/a

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
n

a
lt
y
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
2
7
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

2
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

S
id

e
m

o
o
r 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
4
,2

5
9
.5

1
 

£
5
9
1

.9
9
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
n

a
lt
y
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
3
0
 

P
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 

2
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 t
e
n

a
n
t 

S
id

e
m

o
o
r 

U
n
d
e
c
la

re
d
 w

o
rk

 
£
3
7
4

.1
8
 

n
/a

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
n

a
lt
y
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 103



 T
h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 u

s
in

g
 c

la
im

 d
a

ta
 s

u
p
p

lie
d

 b
y
 B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
w

 c
la

im
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 b
e

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
. 

  A
ll 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
 

3
,7

6
0

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

c
to

r 
re

n
te

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
 

2
,7

9
0

 

P
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
re

n
te

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
 

9
7

0
 

A
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la

im
s
 

5
,3

0
0

 

B
o

th
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
 

3
,4

2
0

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
n
ly

 c
la

im
s
 

1
,8

8
0

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
o

n
ly

 c
la

im
s
 

3
4

0
 

   

Page 104



 BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  14th March 2013 

 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13 

 

 

14th March 2013 

 

§ Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 2011/2012 – quarterly 
report in respect of progress made on the actions – verbal update  

§ Grant Thornton -  Certification Report 2011 / 2012 
§ Grant Thornton – Auditing Standards  
§ Grant Thornton – Audit Plan 
§ Grant Thornton – Progress Report   
§ Internal Audit Monitoring Report 
§ Individual Reports for completed audits  
§ Internal Audit Performance and Workload 
§ Internal Audit DRAFT Annual Plan 2013/2014 

§ Corporate Risk Register / Risk Management – further update on the 
new risk management system, including corporate and operational 
risks.  

§ Leisure and Culture Department – high level risks / operational risks 
presentation 

§ Corporate Fraud – (how the Authority pro-actively responds)   
§ End of Year Report from the Board   

 

 

To Be Allocated To Suitable Dates 

 

§ Departmental Risk Registers – High Level Actions, quarterly reports (to 
include a frontline service and a support service. 

§ Departmental Risk Registers – Detailed reports to be provided 
periodically 

§ Contracts Register – ‘due process’ update to be provided with regard to 
contracts entered into and that the Legal Services Team see all 
contracts entered into  

§ Best practice – speaker from another authority on operation of their 
member Audit review and monitoring arrangements 

Agenda Item 15

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

THE 2013/14 DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN REPORT OF THE SERVICE 
MANAGER OF THE WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   Head of Resources 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 To present: 

! the Bromsgrove District Council Internal Audit Operational Plan for 2013/14 

! the key performance indicators for the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared 

Service for 2013/14 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1! The Board is asked to APPROVE the audit plan and key performance 

indicators.!

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 to “undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. 

To aid compliance with the regulation, the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 details that “Internal 
Audit work should be planned, controlled and recorded in order to determine 

Agenda Item 16

Page 107



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

priorities, establish and achieve objectives and ensure the effective and efficient 
use of audit resources”. 

Service / Operational Implications

Internal Audit Aims and Objectives

3.3 The aims and objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are 

to:

! examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
control and risk management across the council and recommend 
arrangements to address weaknesses as appropriate;

! examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with 
legislation and the council’s objectives, policies and procedures;

! examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the council’s assets 
and interests are adequately protected and effectively managed;

! undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity 
in accordance with council policies and procedures and relevant legislation; 
and

! advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other 
organisation changes e.g. transformation.

Formulation of Annual Plan

The Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14, which is included at Appendix 1, is a risk 
based plan which takes into account the adequacy of the council’s risk 
management, performance management and other assurance processes.  It has 
been based upon the risk priorities per discussions with the s151 Officer and 
Heads of Service as well as an independent risk assessment of the audit 
universe by Internal Audit.  The Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 has been agreed 
with the council’s section 151 officer. 

By bringing a provisional plan of work before the Audit Board in December 2012 
it allowed Members to have a positive input into the audit work programme for 
2013/14 and make suggestions as to where they felt audit resources should be 
directed.  As with all plans it may subject to review as the year progresses in 
consultation with the s151 Officer. 

Page 108



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

Resource Allocation

The Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 has been based upon a resource allocation 
of 300 chargeable days, a resource allocation which has been agreed with the 
council’s s151 officer.  The Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit 
Shared Service is confident that, with this resource allocation, he can provide 
management, external audit and those charged with governance with the 
assurances and coverage that they require over the system of internal control, 
annual governance statement and statement of accounts.  The 300 day 
allocation is based on transactional type system audits.  Enhanced audit 
requirements requested by the Board have been included. 

The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 is set out at Appendix 1. 

Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan

Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 will be closely 
monitored by the Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared 
Service and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which 
comprises the s151 officers from client organisations, on a quarterly basis and to 
the Audit Board on a quarterly basis. 

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be determined 
by the performance against a set of key performance indicators which have been 
developed for the service.  These have been agreed with the council’s s151 
officer and are included at Appendix 2.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

 There are no implications arising out of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1      The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

failure to complete the planned programme of audit work within the financial year; 
and,

the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained. 

 These risks are being managed via the 4Risk risk management system within the 
Finance and Resources risk area. 

Page 109



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

5. APPENDICES

   Appendix 1 ~ Outline Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 
   Appendix 2 ~ Key performance indicators 2013/14 
    

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

7. KEY

N/a

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:   Andy Bromage 
Service Manager - Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
Tel:       01905 722051 

Page 110



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

DETAILED PROVISIONAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2013/14         APPENDIX 1

      

Audit Area Source
Planned days 

2012/13
Planned days 

2013/14
Difference   = 

+ or - 

A – CHARGEABLE AND PRODUCTIVE 

Core Financial Systems       

Benefits Risk assessment score 36 15 15 0 

NDR Risk assessment score 36 12 12 0 

Council Tax Risk assessment score 33 12 12 0 

General Ledger, Budget Control & Bank 
Reconciliations 

Risk assessment score 33 21 17 -4 

Treasury Management Risk assessment score 30 7 7 0 

Creditors Risk assessment score 29 7 10 3 

Debtors Risk assessment score 28 7 7 0 

Asset Management Risk assessment score 26 7 7 0 

88 87 -1

Corporate     0 

Shared Service Delivery (Client)(Performance 

Monitoring)

Board & Risk assessment 
score 36 

15 12 -3 

ICT Risk assessment score 35 14 14 0 

Corporate Governance  (Health & Safety, 
Media & Communications, Performance 
Indicators & data quality ) 

Risk assessment score 31 10 10 0 

Risk Management Risk assessment score 31 15 15 0 

s106's Risk assessment score 31 0 10 10 

Transformation & VFM (Critical friend) Board & Section 151 request 15 7 -8 

69 68 -1

P
age 111



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

Audit Area Source
Planned days 

2012/13
Planned days 

2013/14
Difference   = 

+ or -

Other Systems Audits 0

Environmental Enforcement Risk assessment score 33 0 8 8 

Depot and Stores Risk assessment score 32 0 10 10 

Development & Building Control Risk assessment score 29 0 8 8 

Regulatory Services Risk assessment score 28 15 15 0 

Land Charges Risk assessment score 28 0 8 8 

BURT Dial a Ride Risk assessment score 28 0 7 7 

Strategic Housing Risk assessment score 27  0 8 8 

Completion of Prior Year’s work N/A 12 10 -2 

Statement of Internal Control N/A 3 3 0 

Follow Up on recommendations N/A 10 12 2 

Fraud and Special Investigations  N/A 8 10 2 

Advisory / Consultancy / Contingency N/A 10 10 0 

   

TOTAL PRODUCTIVE (A ONLY) 266 264

B – CHARGEABLE AND NON-PRODUCTIVE 

Audit Management Meetings N/A 15 15 

Corporate Meetings / Reading N/A 5 5 

Annual Plans and Reports N/A 8 8 

Audit Board support N/A 6 8 

2

TOTAL CHARGEABLE AND NON-
PRODUCTIVE (B) 

34 36 2

TOTAL CHARGEABLE (A + B) 300 300 0

P
age 112



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

SUMMARY OF DETAILED PROVISIONAL PLAN 2013/14

Planned Days for 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

Core Financial Systems 49 48 

Revenues and Benefits 39 39 

Corporate Work 69 68 

Other Systems Audits inc follow up 79 79 

Completion of prior year's work 12 10 

Advisory / Consultancy inc NFI, Fraud & 
investigations 18 20 

       

Sub Total 266 264     

       

Audit management meetings 15 15     

Corporate meetings / reading 5 5     

Annual plans and reports 8 8     

Audit Board support 6 8     

       

Sub Total 34 36     

   

TOTAL Audit Days  
300 300     

P
age 113



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14thMARCH 2013 
!

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2013/14      APPENDIX 2

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against the following key performance 

indicators for 2013/14. 

 KPI Target Frequency of 
reporting

1 % Plan delivered 
excluding overruns 

90% for 
year

Quarterly

2 Customer 
satisfaction surveys 

90%
Good or 
above

Quarterly

3 Number of audits 
delivered compared 
to plan 

Minimum 
15

Quarterly

4 Annual survey of 
Internal Audit 
Service

Good or 
above

Annually

The Internal Audit Self-Assessment checklist assessing compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government in the UK 2006 will also be completed at the end of the annual cycle.  Any areas of partial or non-compliance with the 

Code will be reported as exceptions to the Client Officer Group and Audit Board. 

P
age 114



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

THE INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT OF THE SERVICE MANAGER OF 
THE WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   Head of Resources 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) 7 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. (Appendices 3 & 4) 

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 To present: 

! the monitoring report of internal audit work and performance as at 31st January 
2013;

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Board is asked to RESOLVE that the report be noted.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 to “undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. 

Service / Operational Implications

3.3 The involvement of Members in progress monitoring is considered to be an 
important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control 
assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 
This section of the report provides commentary on Internal Audit’s performance 
for the period 01st April 2012 to 31st January 2013 against the performance 
indicators agreed for the service.  As discussed at the 21st June Audit Board the 
Management of Data audit will be included in the 2012/13 plan as part of the 

Agenda Item 17

Page 115



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

Governance audit. This is scheduled to be undertaken this quarter with the 
outcome being reported to the Audit Board in a timely manner.

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED/COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT: 

Debtors (Final Report) 
The review was a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the debtors 
system as operated from the point where the invoice is raised to entry onto the 
main ledger.  The review found there is a generally sound system of internal 
control in place.  The debtors system is running effectively and efficiently in the 
majority of areas, including, invoice requests authorised appropriately and timely 
by the Exchequer team with the payments being recorded correctly and 
accurately in the Main Ledger.  Although ‘parked’ invoices were not being 
reviewed on a regular basis, there was sufficient evidence to show that a 
procedure was in the process of being implemented with the monthly 
reconciliations.  Areas where further enhancements could be made to the control 
environment included better narrative and notes detail being entered against 
accounts and an updating of accounts when final reminder thresholds have been 
reached.

Assurance Level: Significant 
Final Report issued: 3rd January 2013 

Treasury Management (Final Report) 
The review was a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the 
Treasury Management System. The audit did not express an opinion on the 
rates of interest obtained for individual investments/loans.  There is generally a 
strong system of internal control.  Monthly reconciliations are undertaken, 
although at the time of this audit were not up to date but this has since been 
addressed.  Interest is paid and received on a timely basis and investments are 
made based upon cash flow, appropriately authorised and in accordance with 
the approved Counterparty list. 

Assurance Level: Significant 
Final Report issued: 13th November 2012 

Street Scene 2012-13 (Final Report) 

The review was a full system audit concentrating on areas of Street Scene. 
Detailed testing of operational activities was limited to areas considered the 
highest priority for the public or the most regularly undertaken, such as fly 
tipping, dog fouling and hazardous waste.  Although there is generally a sound 
system of control in place and areas of good practice were identified (for 
example budget monitoring, publicity campaigns and priority cleansing areas) the 
audit found a couple of areas where managers are required to address identified 
control weaknesses including, performance monitoring currently undertaken and 

Page 116



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

the development of the street sweeping schedules currently in operation (e.g. 
detail how often a street is cleaned, different streets having different frequencies 
dependent on usage (footfall), etc) These are with managers to ensure that 
processes continue to be developed for the future. 

The service is currently undergoing a transformation review and, therefore, the 
findings and consequential recommendations will be considered as part of this 
process.

Assurance Level: Significant 
Final Report issued: 7th January 2013 

  Summary of Assurance Levels: 

Audit Assurance Level

Debtors 2012/13 Significant 

Treasury Management 2012/13 Significant 

Street Scene 2012/13 Significant 

2012/13 AUDITS IN PROGRESS AS AT 31st January 2013

Creditors (Draft Report Stage) 
The review is a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the creditors 
system as operated from the point when the purchase order is raised to the point 
the payment is recorded in the ledger. The audit will not look at the procuring of 
goods and services. 

Parks and Open Spaces (Draft Report Stage) 
The review is a limited systems review of Sanders Park concentrating on the 
areas of the pavilion and café including, income collection and contractual and 
management information. 

ICT (Draft Report Stage) 
The review is a full system audit focusing on inventory; replacement programme; 
IT Helpdesk; communications and monitoring. 

Asset Management (Clearance Meeting Stage) 
The review is a risk based systems review seeking assurance on the accuracy of 
the records maintained for recording Fixed Assets with regards to both the Fixed 
Asset Register and other service department registers.  All land and property 
valuations are performed under a service level agreement with Worcestershire 
County Council.  The review will concentrate on areas including assets per the 
Fixed Asset Register are owned by Bromsgrove District Council, there are 
procedures in place for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets, Valuation of Assets 
as well as assets per the Fixed Asset Register are reconciled to other asset 

Page 117



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

records held e.g. the land and property database maintained by the Property 
Section and there is evidence to support this.

Renovation Grants (Clearance Meeting Stage) 
The review is a risk based systems audit concentrating on the Renovation 
Grants system from the point where the application form is received to the 
approval of the grant. The review will assess control objectives of Renovation 
Grants including critical appraisal of each stage of the process, grants are 
consistent and awarded only to eligible applicants and the contract with Festival 
Housing is monitored.

Climate Change (Fieldwork Stage) 
The audit is a risk based systems review of limited scope.  The review is to 
concentrate on areas including the utilisation of funding by Bromsgrove District 
Council, monitoring of savings and repayment of funding as per agreement.  The 
review will assess the eligible projects have been identified to maximise the use 
of available grant and Salix funding, in accordance with determined criteria along 
with effectively monitoring of performance and promotion.

Regulatory Services ~ Licensing Income (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the Miscellaneous 
Environmental Licensing system. The review has included the granting and 
approval of licenses, renewal and enforcement, collection and payment of 
licenses and income performance monitoring. 

Council Tax (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the 
Council Tax system in connection with key areas such as discounts, recovery of 
debt, write offs and system access. 

Non Domestic Rates (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the Non 
Domestic Rate system in connection with key areas such as discounts, recovery 
of debt, write offs and system access. 

Housing and Council Tax Benefits (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit system in connection with key areas such as 
overpayments, back dated claims and reconciliations. 

Cemetery and Crematorium
The review will be a full system audit which will concentrate on adherence with 
regulatory requirements, for example, documentation and authorisation; income 
collection; pursuit of debts; landscaping maintenance and management 
information.  The audit is due to recommence towards the end of February 
having been placed on hold. 

Page 118



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

As the above audits remain in progress an assurance level will be allocated on 
completion. 

3.4 AUDIT DAYS

Appendix 1 shows that progress continues to be made towards delivering the 
Internal Audit Plan and achieving the targets set for the year.  As at 31st January 
2013 a total of 187 days had been delivered against a target of 300 days for 
2012/13.

Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.  These indicators 
were agreed by the Board on the 29th March 2012 for 2012/13. 

Appendix 3 shows a summary of the ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority 
recommendations for those audits that have been completed and final reports 
issued.

Appendix 4 shows an updated list of recommendations reported to the Board 
previously.  The ‘Action Tracker’ reporting mechanism has been superseded by 
Appendix 3 but will continue to be reported until the points have been satisfied.  

3.5  OTHER KEY AUDIT WORK

Much internal audit work is carried out “behind the scenes” but is not always the 
subject of a formal report. Productive audit time is accurately recorded against 
the service or function as appropriate. Examples include: 

! Governance for example assisting with the Annual Government Statement 

! Risk management 

! Transformation review providing support as a critical friend  

! Dissemination of information regarding potential fraud cases likely to 
affect the Council 

! Drawing managers’ attention to specific audit or risk issues 

! Audit advice and commentary 

! Internal audit recommendations: follow up review to analyse progress 

! Day to day audit support and advice for example control implications, etc. 

! Networking with audit colleagues in other Councils on professional points 
of practice 

! National Fraud Initiative. 

! Investigations 

Page 119



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

Recruitment

3.6 WIASS has experienced natural turnover of staff and has also had to manage 
sickness absence during the year to date.  This has been achieved with the 
careful allocation of resource and engaging the services of agency workers to 
assist in the overall delivery of the plans to all the partners. Close monitoring of 
resource is continuing using current management information and further 
resource is secured and in place to assist the delivery of the partner’s plans in 
relation to forecasted demand for the remainder of quarter 4.  WIASS remains 
committed to delivering all audits as indicated in the 2012/13 plan for 
Bromsgrove District Council and continues to take active steps to achieve this.  
There is no expectation that engaging agency workers will result in an increased 
contribution requirement from Bromsgrove District Council.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.7 There are no implications arising out of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1      The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

failure to complete the planned programme of audit work within the financial 
year; and, 

the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained. 

 These risks are being managed via the 4Risk risk management system within 
the Finance and Resources risk area. 

5. APPENDICES

   Appendix 1 ~ Internal Audit Plan delivery 2012/13 
   Appendix 2 ~ Key performance indicators 2012/13 
   Appendix 3 ~ ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority recommendations summary and 
           complete finalised reports 
   Appendix 4 ~ Action Tracker entries 
       

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Individual Internal Audit reports. 

Page 120



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

7. KEY

N/a

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:   Andy Bromage 
Service Manager - Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
Tel:       01905 722051 

Page 121



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

APPENDIX 1 

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13
1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013

Audit Area 
2012/13

PLANNED 
DAYS 

DAYS 
PLANNED 

TO THE 
END OF 
THE 3rd

QUARTER

DAYS 
USED TO 
31/01/13

Core Financial Systems (*Note 1) 88 71 46 

Corporate Audits (*Note 2) 69 31 27 

Other Systems Audits (*Note 3) 109 73 79 

TOTAL 266 175 152

    

Audit Management Meetings 15 11 13 

Corporate Meetings / Reading 5 4 4 

Annual Plans and Reports 8 6 5 

Audit Board support 6 5 6 

Other chargeable 0 0 7 

 TOTAL 34 26 35

 TOTAL 300 201 187

Page 122



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

*Note 1 
Core Financial Systems are audited in quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the assurance provided for 
Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts. An explanation as to the short fall against the 
projected days is provided at paragraph 3.6 above and the situation is being addressed.  

 *Note 2 
Corporate Audits to include Management of Data audit request per Audit Board 21st June 2012. 

*Note 3 
A number of the budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ e.g. consultancy, investigations so the 
requirements can fluctuate.

Page 123



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 14th MARCH 2013 

APPENDIX 2 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 01st April 2012 to 31st March 2013.

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against 
the following key performance indicators for 2012/13. 

The Internal Audit Self-Assessment checklist assessing compliance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 will also be 
completed at the end of the annual cycle.  Any areas of partial or non-compliance with 
the Code will be reported as exceptions to the Client Officer Group and Audit Board.

KPI Progress to date
(1/4/12 to 
31/01/13)

Target Frequency of 
Reporting

1 % Plan delivered excluding 
overruns

62% 90% 
for

year

Quarterly

2 Customer satisfaction 
surveys

None received at 
time of publishing

90%
Good

or
above

Quarterly

3 Number of audits delivered 
compared to plan 

2012/13
6x Final Reports 
3x Draft Reports 

&
8x in progress 

2011/12
2

18 Quarterly 

4 Annual survey of Internal 
Audit Service 

To be monitored 
by the Client 
Officer Group 
throughout the 

year

Good
or

above

Annually

Page 124



Agenda Item 19

Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 13th December 2012
	4 Grant Thornton - Certification Report 2011/ 2012
	Grant Thornton - Certification Report 2011-12

	5 Grant Thornton - Auditing Standards
	Grant Thornton Auditing Standards

	6 Grant Thornton - Audit Plan March 2013
	Grant Thornton Audit Plan March 2013

	7 Grant Thornton - Progress Report
	Grant Thornton Audit Board Update March 2013

	9 Statement of Accounting Policies
	Appendix 1 - Statement of Accounting Policies

	12 Benefits Investigations - Demographic Profile
	15 Audit Board Work Programme
	16 DRAFT Internal Audit Plan 2013 / 2014
	17 Internal Audit Monitoring Report
	19 Appendices 3 and 4 for Agenda Item 17  - Internal Audit Monitoring Report

